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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

| am pleased to present to you the annual results for 2018.
Financial Results

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2018 was
HK$58,454,000 (2017: HK$60,004,000), a decrease of HK$1,550,000
or 2.58% compared to the year before. The profit attributable to owners of
the Company amounted to HK$112,747,000 (2017: HK$169,165,000),
representing a decrease of HK$56,418,000 or 33.35% from 2017. The
decrease in profit for the year was the result of:

(1) The decrease in share of profit of associates from HK$99,051,000 in
last year to HK$56,302,000 in current year; and

(2) The decrease in fair value gain of investment properties from
HK$46,295,000 in last year to HK$25,631,000 in current year.

Earnings per share amounted to HK9.08 cents (2017: HK13.62 cents),
while the net asset value per share attributable to owners of the Company
was HK$3.63 as at 31st December, 2018 (2017: HK$3.79).

Dividend

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Board has declared an
interim dividend of HK10 cents per share (in lieu of a final dividend) for
the year ended 31st December, 2018 (2017: second interim dividend of
HK25 cents per share) payable on or around Wednesday, 10th April, 2019
to the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on Friday, 29th March, 2019.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

Closure of Register of Members

M

2)

For determining the entitlement to the interim dividend (in
lieu of a final dividend)

For determining the entitlement to the interim dividend (in lieu of a
final dividend) for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018, the register
of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 28th
March, 2019 to Friday, 29th March, 2019 (both days inclusive),
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will
be registered. In order for a Shareholder to qualify for the interim
dividend (in lieu of a final dividend), all transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's
share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited of Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on Wednesday, 27th March, 2019.

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (“2019
AGM")

The 2019 AGM is scheduled to be held on Wednesday, 22nd May,
2019. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
2019 AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Friday, 17th May, 2019 to Wednesday, 22nd May, 2019 (both
days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order for a Shareholder to be eligible
to attend and vote at the 2019 AGM, all transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's
share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited of Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on Thursday, 16th May, 2019.

111
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

Management Discussion and Analysis
Business Review

The Group’s core businesses comprise property investment, property
leasing and estate management in Hong Kong.

For the year ended 31st December, 2018, the Group's commercial
properties situated at Harbour Crystal Centre recorded an average
occupancy level of approximately 99% and the performance of rental
income was satisfactory.

In respect of the residential properties held by the associate (33.33%
owned) situated at The Redhill Peninsula, 3 houses have been completed
for sales for the year ended 31st December, 2018. The remaining 41
houses are being launched for both sale and leasing in batches in the year
of 2019.

The Group's industrial properties situated at Ap Lei Chau, Hong Kong,
the Harbour Industrial Centre and the Oceanic Industrial Centre held by
the associate (33.33% owned) recorded an average occupancy level of
approximately 57% and the rental income performed reasonably.

Financial Review
Group Assets and Charges

The total assets of the Group have decreased from HK$4,894,582,000 last
year to HK$4,714,880,000 in this year. The net assets of the Group have
decreased from HK$4,703,397,000 to HK$4,509,150,000 in this year.
At 31st December, 2018, no investment properties of the Group in Hong
Kong (2017: HK$ Nil) were pledged as security for banking facilities. The
Group has no bank loan, but will undergo a discussion with the bank for the
renewal of banking facilities and the bank has agreed to provide banking
facilities if necessary.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
Financial Review (continued)
Group Financial Position, Liquidity and Financial Resources

The total liabilities of the Group have increased from HK$191,185,000 as
at 31st December, 2017 to HK$205,730,000 as at 31st December, 2018.
The Group had cash and bank balances of HK$198,001,000 as at 31st
December, 2018 (2017: HK$520,411,000). The ratio of total liabilities
to total assets was approximately 4.36% (2017: 3.919%). As at 31st
December, 2018, the Group had no bank loans (2017: Nil) and the total
equity was HK$4,509,150,000 (2017: HK$4,703,397,000).

As at 31st December, 2018, the current assets of the Group, amounting to
HK$482,658,000 (2017: HK$780,146,000), exceeded its current liabilities
by HK$447,809,000 (2017: HK$750,368,000).

For the year ended 31st December, 2018, the Group had no material
exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates and no related hedges and there
were no contingent liabilities.

Financial/Operational Key Performance Indicators
Key Performance Indicator (“KPI")

For the year of 2018, the Group set the following operational KPIs to
maintain high competitiveness:

(1) For the investment properties managed by the Group, our aim is to
maintain 10% yearly increment in the total rental income.

(2) For the sale of The Redhill Peninsula Project held by the associate
(33.339% owned), our aim is to sell one house quarterly.

Having reviewed the annual performance, these KPIs have been partially
achieved. The Group will keep updating its operational KPIs and sale/

leasing strategy to adapt the market changes.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
Future Likely Development
Objectives for 2019 are as follows:

(1)  We will continue to improve our investment portfolio through
acquisition of quality properties at attractive valuations and disposals
of under-performing properties in order to balance the demands of
short-term returns and long-term capital appreciation.

(2) We will be more proactive in changing the strategy from sale to
leasing for the remaining houses in The Redhill Peninsula held by the
associate (33.33% owned).

(3) We will review our management and cost structure so as to improve
efficiency and reduce expenses where possible.

(4) We will consider gearing up in a responsible manner in order to
increase our return on equity.

Business Outlook

General economic and real estate market conditions in Hong Kong
weakened somewhat in the second half of 2018, over fears of rising
interest rates and prolonged trade war between China and US. Residential
property prices were strong up to the middle of the year, then began to
soften and transaction volumes dropped significantly. A rebound in visitor
numbers, especially from mainland China, have helped to stabilise retalil
rents. We expect the rental income from Harbour Crystal Centre (portion),
which is particularly popular with shoppers from mainland China, to remain
stable.

Looking ahead, the Group will monitor market conditions closely. With
our strong financial position, the Group will consider selectively acquiring
attractive Hong Kong and overseas properties in order to strengthen
its investment property portfolio. The Group will continue to focus on
maintaining a healthy growth rate in recurring earnings and a stable financial
profile.

The Group will remain proactive in business operations and continue to be
cautious in managing its finance.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

Appreciation

| would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow Directors and the
staff for their diligence and contributions to the Group in the past year, to
the Shareholders for their understanding and support, and to the customers
for their trust.

Patrick Lee Seng Wei
Chairman

Hong Kong, 13th March, 2019
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FEVESTH PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES
RoE—-NE+=—H=+—H as at 31st December, 2018
HEEER
(FEAR)

Total gross Efr Frid a5t
ik T R SR 1S i floor area Car parking Percentage
Location Lot No. Use (sq. ft.) spaces owned
BREME

Investment properties

HE

Hong Kong

7m0 (R D) JUEEAIER [EHES 138,663 - 80
BERVDEREIEFHEBI005%E 106009k 8,881 - 40

Harbour Crystal Centre (portion) K.LL. 10600 Commercial 30 100

100 Granville Road,
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon

ABIEHOEMR) WM AR I H5E 266,126 59 33.33
ERBEBF 11657
RS RN
Harbour Industrial Centre (portion) — ALL116 Industrial/Godown
Ap Lei Chau, Aberdeen,
Hong Kong
BETEHO(EMR) BHMAE I¥E5E 741,706 74 33.33
EEEBT 1165%
RS AR
Oceanic Industrial Centre (portion)  AlLL116 Industrial/Godown
Ap Lei Chau, Aberdeen,
Hong Kong
wEEFESL(EHR) MIER22435%  BEMAE 27,457 - 50
BB ZERER
ERAKBHR58-645%
Queen’s Centre (portion) I.L.2243R.P. Commercial/Offices

58-64 Queen's Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES (continued)
as at 31st December, 2018

BEREmER
(FEHFR)

Total gross Efr Frid a5t
ik T R SR 1S i floor area Car parking Percentage
Location Lot No. Use (sq. ft.) spaces owned
FEIRT A0 (EBH) JE AR I% 134,236 10 50

LRI 2958
HEERE4A
Wah Shun Industrial Centre (portion) Y.T.L.L.29 Industrial
4 Cho Yuen Street,
Yau Tong, Kowloon
AL BE—HEMD) M@y EE 10,427 - 33.33
BEKE 1050%%
Redhill Peninsula, Phase 1 (portion) R.B.L.1050 Residential
Tai Tam, Hong Kong
L SEMGEMD) SR FR LM ER F=E 98,250 - 33.33
FENE 10505%
Redhill Peninsula, Phase 2 (portion) R.B.L.1050 Residential

Tai Tam, Hong Kong

11
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance within a sensible framework with an emphasis on the principles
of transparency, accountability and independence. The board of directors of
the Company (“Board") believes that good corporate governance is essential
to the success of the Company and to the enhancement of shareholders’
value.

Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report

In the light of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (“CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”), the Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices of the
Company with the adoption of the various enhanced procedures which
are detailed in this report. The Company has applied the principles of, and
complied with, the applicable code provisions of the CG Code during the
year ended 31st December, 2018, except for certain deviations as specified
with considered reasons for such deviations as explained below. The Board
will review the current practices at least annually, and make appropriate
changes if considered necessary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Board

The Board currently comprises seven directors (“Directors”) in total, with
four Executive Directors and three Independent Non-Executive Directors
("INEDs"). The composition of the Board during the year and up to the date
of this report is set out as follows:

Executive Directors:

Patrick Lee Seng Wei (Chairman)
(resigned as Chief Executive and appointed as Chairman,
both on 4th January, 2018)

Lee Shu Yin (Chief Executive)
(appointed as Chief Executive and Executive Director,
both on 4th January, 2018)

Edwin Lo King Yau

Tao Tsan Sang

Non-Executive Director:

Lee Seng Hui
(resigned as Chairman and Non-Executive Director,
both on 4th January, 2018)

INEDs:

Li Chak Hung
Choi Kin Man
Lisa Yang Lai Sum

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” section in the Directors’
Report on pages 49 to 52. Other than that Mr. Lee Seng Hui, the former
Chairman of the Board, is a cousin of Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei, the present
Chairman of the Board, there are no family or other material relationships
among members of the Board.

13
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Board (continued)
Board Process

During the year, the Non-Executive Directors (a majority of whom are
independent) provided the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
“Group”) with a wide range of expertise and experience. Their active
participation in the Board and committee meetings brought independent
judgement on issues relating to the Group's strategy, performance and
management process, taking into account the interests of all shareholders
of the Company (“Shareholders”).

Throughout the year and up to the date of this report, the Company has
had three INEDs representing not less than one-third of the Board. At
least one of the INEDs has the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise under Rule 3.10
of the Listing Rules. The Board has received from each INED an annual
confirmation of his/her independence and considers that all the INEDs are
independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Group, and to review and
approve the Group's annual and interim results and other ad hoc matters
which need to be dealt with. During the year, four Board meetings were
held and the individual attendance records of each Director at the meetings
of the Board, Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and Annual
General Meeting during the year ended 31st December, 2018 are set out
below:

HE/ BITERZRY
Number of meetings attended/held
BRBEXE
FHZERE E vl Annual
EE®  Remuneration Audit General
EFfE Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Meeting
BiTEE: Executive Directors:
FRE(FRE)W5E2) Patrick Lee Seng Wei (Chairman,) (Note 2) 4/4 0/1
TR (TTHAEE) (Wat3) Lee Shu Yin (Chief Executive) (Note 3) 4/4 0/1
B Edwin Lo King Yau 4/4 1/1
HgE Tao Tsan Sang 4/4 11
ERITEE: Non-Executive Director:
IR (f1574) Lee Seng Hui (Note 4) 0/0 0/0
BUERTES: INEDs:
FER Li Chak Hung 3/4 1/1 2/2 1/1
ERR Choi Kin Man 4/4 1/1 2/2 11
BER Lisa Yang Lai Sum 4/4 1/1 2/2 1/1
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Board (continued)

Board Process (continued)

Notes:

1. Attendances of the Directors appointed or resigned during the year were made by
reference to the number of such meetings held during their respective tenures.

2. Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei resigned as the Chief Executive and was appointed as the
Chairman of the Board of the Company with effect from 4th January, 2018.

3. Mr. Lee Shu Yin was appointed as the Chief Executive and an Executive Director of
the Company with effect from 4th January, 2018.

4. Mr. Lee Seng Hui resigned as the Chairman of the Board and Non-Executive
Director of the Company with effect from 4th January, 2018.

The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration matters covering
mainly the Group's overall strategy, annual operating budget, annual and
interim results, approval of Directors’ appointment or re-appointment
(based on the recommendations made by the Nomination Committee),
material contracts and transactions, corporate governance as well as other
significant policy and financial matters. The Board has delegated the day-
to-day responsibility to the executive management under the instruction/
supervision of the Executive Committee which has its specific written terms
of reference. The respective functions of the Board and management of the
Company have been formalised and set out in writing and will be reviewed
and updated by the Board from time to time to ensure that they are
consistent with the existing rules and regulations.

Regular Board meetings each year are scheduled in advance to facilitate
maximum attendance of Directors. At least 14 days’ notice of a Board
meeting is normally given to all Directors who are given an opportunity to
include matters for discussion in the agenda. The company secretary of
the Company (“Company Secretary”) assists the Chairman of the Board in
preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations are complied with. The agenda and the accompanying Board
papers are normally sent to all Directors at least 3 days before the intended
date of a regular Board meeting (and so far as practicable for such other
Board meetings). Draft minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to
all Directors for their comment before being tabled at the following Board
meeting for approval. All minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.

According to the current Board practice, if a substantial Shareholder or
a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the
Board which the Board has determined to be material, the matter will be
dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. Thearticles
of association of the Company (“Articles of Association”) also stipulate
that save for the exceptions as provided therein, a Director shall abstain
from voting on any Board resolution and not be counted in the quorum at
meetings for approving any contract or arrangement in which such Director
or any of his/her close associates has a material interest.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Board (continued)

Board Process (continued)

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and related
materials and has access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. The Board and each Director also have separate and independent
access to the Company's senior management. Directors will be continuously
updated on the major development of the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of
good corporate governance practices. In addition, a written procedure has
been established since August 2017 to enable the Directors, in discharge
of their duties, to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at a reasonable cost to be borne by the Company.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

For continuous professional development, in addition to Directors’

ARBEREBEE 2 X RBRIN EELH Y attendance at meetings and review of papers and circulars sent by the
EEBENT management of the Company, Directors participated in the activities
including the following:
BHRGHSRBRTID
Participation in Continuous
Professional Development Activities
HEREERERMZ
e RE i
Attending trainings/
FRERENR briefings/seminars/
Reading conference relevant
EENE Name of Directors Regulatory Updates to Directors’ duties
BiTESE: Executive Directors:
FRRE(FRE)(HEET) Patrick Lee Seng Wei (Chairman) (Note 1) v/ v/
TRIB (778483 (M7E2) Lee Shu Yin (Chief Executive) (Note 2) v v
Bt Edwin Lo King Yau v v
A Tao Tsan Sang v v
FRITESE : Non-Executive Director:
FRE(HE3) Lee Seng Hui (Note 3) - -
BN IERITES : INEDs:
PRI Li Chak Hung v v
2R Choi Kin Man v v
HREER Lisa Yang Lai Sum v/ v/
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Board (continued)

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development (continued)

Notes:

1. Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei resigned as the Chief Executive and was appointed as the
Chairman of the Board of the Company with effect from 4th January, 2018.

2. Mr. Lee Shu Yin was appointed as the Chief Executive and an Executive Director of
the Company with effect from 4th January, 2018.

3. Mr. Lee Seng Hui resigned as the Chairman of the Board and Non-Executive
Director of the Company with effect from 4th January, 2018.

Board Diversity

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy in August 2017
which sets out the objectives and principles regarding board diversity for
the purpose of achieving the Company's strategic objectives of balanced
diversity at the Board as far as practicable. Board appointments will be
based on merit and candidates will be considered against measurable
objectives, taking into account the Company’s business and needs.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity criteria,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, knowledge, professional experience and skills. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and the contribution that the selected
candidates may bring to the Board.

Roles of Chairman and Chief Executive

Code provision A2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive (“CE") should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei, being the Chairman of the
Board, is primarily responsible for the leadership of the Board, ensuring that
(i) all significant policy issues are discussed by the Board in a timely and
constructive manner; (i) all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising
at Board meetings; and (iii) the Directors receive accurate, timely and clear
information. The functions of the CE are performed by Mr. Lee Shu Yin,
the Chief Executive of the Company, who is responsible for the day-to-
day management of the Group's business. Their responsibilities are clearly
segregated and have been set out in writing and approved by the Board|in

August 2017, and subsequently updated in January 2019.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee include the
nomination procedure specifying the process and criteria for the selection
and recommendation of candidates for directorship of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive an induction package from
the Company Secretary on the first occasion of his/her appointment. This
induction package is a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on
the responsibilities and on-going obligations to be observed by a director
pursuant to the Companies Ordinance, Listing Rules and Securities and
Futures Ordinance. In addition, this induction package includes materials
briefly describing the operations and business of the Company, the latest
published financial reports of the Company and the documentation for the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Board. Directors will be
continuously updated on any major developments of the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep
of good corporate governance practices.

All Non-Executive Directors (including INEDs) of the Company were
appointed for a specific term, but subject to the relevant provisions of the
Articles of Association or any other applicable laws whereby the Directors
shall vacate or retire from their office but eligible for re-election. The term
of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors (including INEDs) has been
renewed for further two years commencing from 1st January, 2019.

According to the Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting
of the Company (“AGM"), one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but
not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. Further, any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the next following general meeting of the Company whilst for
those appointed as an addition to the Board shall hold office until the next
following AGM and in both cases, those Directors shall then be eligible
for re-election at the relevant meeting. Every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties and
has adopted the written terms of reference on its corporate governance
functions in August 2017.

The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate governance functions
include:

(i)  developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and

(v) reviewing the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

In 2018 and up to the date of this report, the Board has performed the
corporate governance duties in accordance with its terms of reference.

Board Committees

The Board has established various committees, including a Nomination
Committee, a Remuneration Committee, an Audit Committee and an
Executive Committee, each of which has its specific written terms of
reference. Copies of minutes of all meetings and resolutions of the
committees, which are kept by the Company Secretary, are circulated to
all Board members and the committees are required to report back to
the Board on their decisions and recommendations where appropriate.
The procedures and arrangements for a Board meeting, as mentioned in
the section headed “The Board” of this report, have been adopted for the
committee meetings so far as practicable.

19
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee has been established since March 2012
and is chaired by an INED and comprises all INEDs. Currently, the
Nomination Committee consists of three members, including Mr. Li Chak
Hung (Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Choi Kin Man and
Ms. Lisa Yang Lai Sum. The Nomination Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice according to the Company’s policy if considered
necessary. The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are
included in its terms of reference, which was revised in August 2017 and
January 2019 and are available on the websites of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) and the Company.

The Nomination Committee has formulated and set out the nomination
policy (“Nomination Policy”) in its terms of reference. The objective of
the Nomination Policy is to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of
the Company's business. To ensure changes to the Board composition can
be managed without undue disruption, a formal, considered and transparent
procedure is in place for selection, appointment and re-appointment of
Directors, as well as plans in place for orderly succession (if considered
necessary), including periodical review of such plans. The appointment of
a new Director (to be an additional Director or fill a casual vacancy as and
when it arises) or any re-appointment of Directors is a matter for decision
by the Board upon the recommendation of the proposed candidate by the
Nomination Committee.

The criteria to be applied in considering whether a candidate is qualified
shall be his or her ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Company and contribute to the diversity of the Board as well
as the effective carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities. Further
details of the selection criteria and the procedure are set out in the terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee which are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee will meet as and when necessary in
accordance with its terms of reference and may also deal with matters by
way of circulation. In 2018, no Nomination Committee meeting was held
while the Nomination Committee dealt with matters by way of circulation.
In 2018 and up to the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
performed the works as summarised below:



REEAE(W)

) REREAEFLIERERREERRS
KT~ \EREEF AR R B AR
REFARZRBE

(i) WBEMEREESHAEBIINTESZMHE
HE T NF-A—BEBEMF

(i) WAEFGNRE - AR AREZTE
AN B BIEIITESRNE LT - &

(v) R lEBEEeERER — T NF—
A—BEARSNEERIEERERTRIMIEH
HEETNRERI R Z S RERE -

FMEBERCR —EERF AR MBATHA=
HREBEK  BREEFMTERSERRALE G
MEBEER) FEHELERBEBRLL - #
MEEGBIEHAMERABITERY - LR
ARBIZBREEFERSRBIEESR - H
HEZEBerFrRACBECEa N HBERE
N ZBRBEDRN T —EFN\AERER R
IRBEEZ P R AR B ANEE,

FNZEezRESREERCEERTAZT
ANMERB.1.2Z BTE - ML ST RMESC Z (R BEIB L
R REEERHTET(TEESRER
AB)(MIEFANEX AR 2 BITEE RRRE R
AB)Z#FHrramERSREEE - LIRS
MR T

() EFERRFHRBEYTEFNEEARE
BABZKE MARFGEFHATES
MITHE BB

TRWEGRAT —T—\FER
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

(i)  reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the proposed
resolutions for re-election of the retiring Directors at 2018 AGM and
2019 AGM;

(i)  reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the renewal of
the terms of appointment of the INEDs for two years commencing
from 1st January, 2019;

(i) reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board
and assessed the independence of each INED; and

(iv) reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the revised
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee for the relevant
amendments to the revised CG Code effective on 1st January, 2019.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established since September
2005 and currently consists of three members, including Mr. Choi Kin Man
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Li Chak Hung and Ms.
Lisa Yang Lai Sum, all being the INEDs. The Remuneration Committee is
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access
to independent professional advice according to the Company's policy if
considered necessary. The major roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are included in its terms of reference, which was revised in
August 2017 and are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are in compliance
with the code provision B.1.2 of the CG Code, but with a deviation
from the code provision that the Remuneration Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of the
Executive Directors only and not senior management (as opposed to
executive directors and senior management under the code provision). The
reasons for the above deviation are summarised as below:

(i)  the Board believes that the Remuneration Committee is not properly
in a position to evaluate the performance of senior management
and that this evaluation process is more effectively carried out by the
Executive Directors;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

(i)

(i)

the Executive Directors must be in a position to supervise and
control senior management and thus must be able to control their
compensation; and

there is no reason for Executive Directors to pay senior management
more than industry standards and thus Shareholders will benefit by
reducing costs in the fixing of such compensation packages.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year in accordance

with its terms of reference. One Remuneration Committee meeting was

held in 2018 and the attendance of each member is set out in the section
headed “The Board” of this report.

In addition to the Remuneration Committee meeting, the Remuneration

Committee also dealt with matters by way of circulation during 2018. In

2018 and up to the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee

performed the works as summarised below:

®

(ii)

(iil)

(v)

reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the existing
policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors;

reviewed the remuneration packages of all the Executive and Non-
Executive Directors (including the INEDs) for the year ended 31st
December, 2017;

reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the increment
in salary for the year 2018 of the Executive Directors and the
increment in service fees of the INEDs from the year 2019 onwards;
and

reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the Directors’
fee for the year 2018.
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Board Committees (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

Each Director will be entitled to a Director's fee. Further remuneration
payable to Directors (including any service fees of the INEDs) for their
additional responsibilities and services will depend on their respective
contractual terms under their employment contracts or service contracts
as approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 10
to the consolidated financial statements whereas detailed changes in the
emoluments of certain Directors during the interim period and up to the
date of the Interim Report were also disclosed in the Interim Report of the
Company dated 15th August, 2018.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established since September 1998 and
currently consists of three INEDs. To retain independence and objectivity,
the Audit Committee is chaired by an INED with appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise. The
current members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Li Chak Hung (Chairman
of the Audit Committee), Mr. Choi Kin Man and Ms. Lisa Yang Lai Sum.
The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
duties and has access to independent professional advice according to the
Company's policy if considered necessary. The major roles and functions
of the Audit Committee are included in its terms of reference, which are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee was revised in August
2017 to comply with the code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code, but with
deviations from the code provision of the audit committee’s responsibility
to:

(i) implement policy on the engagement of the external auditors to
supply non-audit services;

(i)  ensure the management has performed its duty to have effective risk
management and internal control systems; and

(i) ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors, and
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and

has appropriate standing within the listed company. ‘
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

The Board considers that the Audit Committee shall recommend (as
opposed to implement under the code provision) the policy on the
engagement of the external auditors to supply non-audit services for the
following reasons:

(i) it is proper and appropriate for the Board and its committees to
develop policy and make appropriate recommendations;

(i)  the proper and appropriate mechanism for implementation of such
policy and recommendations is through the Executive Directors and
management; and

(i) INEDs are not in an effective position to implement policy and follow
up the same on a day-to-day basis.

Further, the Board considers that the Audit Committee only possesses
the effective ability to scrutinise (as opposed to ensure under the code
provision) whether management has performed its duty to have effective
risk management and internal control systems. The Audit Committee is not
equipped to ensure that the same is in place as this would involve day-
to-day supervision and the employment of permanent experts. The Audit
Committee is not in a position either to ensure co-ordination between
the internal and external auditors but it can promote the same. Similarly,
the Audit Committee is not in a position to ensure that the internal audit
function is adequately resourced but it can check whether it is adequately
resourced.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year in accordance with
its terms of reference. Two Audit Committee meetings were held in 2018
and the attendance of each member is set out in the section headed “The
Board” of this report.

In addition to the Audit Committee meetings, the Audit Committee also
dealt with matters by way of circulation during 2018. In 2018 and up
to the date of this report, the Audit Committee performed the works as
summarised below:
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

®

(ii)

(i)

(v)

(Vi)

(vii)

reviewed and approved the audit scope and fees proposed by the
external auditor in respect of the final audit for the year ended 31st
December, 2017 (“2017 Final Audit”), the interim results review for
the six months ended 30th June, 2018 (“2018 Interim Review") and
the final audit for the year ended 31st December, 2018 (“2018 Final
Audit") of the Group;

reviewed the independent review report/audit completion report
from the external auditor and the management's response in relation
to 2017 Final Audit, 2018 Interim Review and 2018 Final Audit;

reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the financial
reports for the year ended 31st December, 2017, for the six months
ended 30th June, 2018 and for the year ended 31st December,
2018 together with the relevant management representation letters
and announcements;

reviewed the internal audit review reports prepared by the Internal
Audit Function of the Group (“IA Function”);

reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the updated
reports on substantiation of the resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions, and their training programmes and
budget;

reviewed and recommended for the Board's annual review the
Whistle Blower Policy, Procedures for the Identification and Monitoring
of Connected Transactions, Related Party Transaction Policies and
Procedures, Policy on the Disclosure of Inside Information and Policy
on Risk Management, Compliance and Internal Control Procedures;
and

reviewed and recommended for the Board's annual review, the
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Group's risk management and internal control systems.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Executive Committee

The Executive Committee has been established since July 2017 and
currently consists of four Executive Directors, being Messrs. Patrick Lee Seng
Wei (Chairman of the Executive Committee), Lee Shu Yin, Edwin Lo King
Yau and Tao Tsan Sang. The Executive Committee is vested with all the
general powers of management and control of the activities of the Group as
are vested in the Board, save for those matters which are reserved for the
Board's decision and approval pursuant to the written terms of reference of
the Executive Committee.

The Executive Committee will meet as and when necessary to discuss the
operating affairs of the Group and may also deal with matters by way of
circulation. The Executive Committee is mainly responsible for undertaking
and supervising the day-to-day management and is empowered:

(i)  to formulate and implement policies for the business activities,
internal control and administration of the Group; and

(i) to plan and decide on strategies to be adopted for the business
activities of the Group within the overall strategy of the Group as
determined by the Board.

Company Secretary

Ms. Cynthia Chen Si Ying is the Company Secretary of the Company. All
Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary.
The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman on board governance
matters, and is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are followed
and for facilitating communications among Directors as well as with the
Shareholders and management.

Ms. Chen is a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
During the year, Ms. Chen undertook over 15 hours of relevant professional
training to update her skills and knowledge.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Codes for Securities Transactions by Directors and Relevant
Employees

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors. All Directors have confirmed, following a specific enquiry by the
Company, that they have complied with the required standard as set out in
the Model Code.

The Company has also adopted the Model Code as the Code for
Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees to regulate dealings in the
securities of the Company by certain employees of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries who are considered to be likely in possession of inside
information in relation to the Company or its securities.

Accountability and Audit
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing, with the
support from the Finance Department, the consolidated financial statements
of the Group. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31st December, 2018, the accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong have been adopted and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (which also include Hong Kong Accounting
Standards and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance were complied with. The Directors believe
that they have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, and made judgements and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable and have ensured that the consolidated financial statements are
prepared on a going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company's external auditor, Deloitte

Touche Tohmatsu, are set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on
pages 58 to 65.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Accountability and Audit (continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board has the responsibility to review annually the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls. In 2018,
the Board, through the Audit Committee, had reviewed the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions, and their training
programmes and budget.

The Group's risk management and internal control systems are designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss; to manage rather than completely eliminate the risk
of system failure; and to assist in the achievement of the Group's agreed
objectives and goals. They have a key role in the management of risks
that are significant to the fulfilment of business objectives. In addition, they
should provide a basis for the maintenance of proper accounting records
and assist in the compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

Systems and procedures are put in place to identify, evaluate and manage
the risks of different businesses and activities. The annual assessment
is performed through the completion by the relevant business units and
department heads of their respective responsibility statements as co-
ordinated by the IA Function. The result and findings are reported to the
Chairman of Executive Committee who puts forward the same to the
Audit Committee and the Board for review on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems, which have been considered
effective and adequate.

A discussion of the policies and procedures on the management of each of
the major types of risk which the Group is facing is included in note 31(b)
to the consolidated financial statements and under “Principal Risks and
Uncertainties” section contained in Directors’ Report on pages 44 to 45.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Accountability and Audit (continued)
Internal Audit

The Acting Head of IA Function reports to the Chairman of the Board and
the Audit Committee. The IA Function generally carries out the analysis and
independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems.

The Internal Audit Reports were prepared by the IA Function and issued to
the Audit Committee and the Board for review.

Policy on Disclosure of Inside Information

The Board has adopted the Policy on the Disclosure of Inside Information
("Policy”) effective on 1st January, 2013 with respect to the procedures and
internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside information.
The Policy sets out guidelines and procedures to the Directors and relevant
officers of the Group to ensure inside information of the Group is to
be disseminated to the public on an equal basis and in timely manner.
Directors and relevant officers in possession of potential inside information
and/or inside information are required to take reasonable measures to
ensure that proper safeguards are in place to preserve strict confidentiality
of inside information and to ensure that its recipients recognise their
obligations to maintain the information confidential. The Policy shall
be updated and revised as and when necessary in light of changes in
circumstances and changes in the Listing Rules, Part XIVA of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance and relevant statutory and regulatory requirements
from time to time.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Accountability and Audit (continued)
External Auditor's Remuneration

During the year, the remuneration paid to the Group's external auditor is set
out as follows:

mAEEEREZERTE Services rendered for the Group le/foj_g
ZER Audit services 1,236
IZERTS (BIERM P BB REENH) Non-audit services (including review of interim results

and results announcements) 316
et Total 1,552
BARER 2 A Communication with Shareholders

EFEERNERRRFREBBEZERN - A/
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KA TR REE o

ARRBRRBFAENETSERERRYBPE Y
BERE  IFEBEG2HETHRAIHRRBEFA
EUAREERRZEAER - FEZZEE  HFHZ
BeLREREEIR  NEXFERRERH
BREZBEE—RERE(HMZEFLBEREE
B AREEEZENRR)NERBFAS LD
B o A TRILARE EHRAKLZ B
VEEZRBE2IF(RWMAEBZEZLIRE - AIE
D—2BIUEEREENE) N L EEARALE
RER Z AR BRI E 2 EM M ST
BRZBEERRE - LEERER -

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
Shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is disseminated to
Shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal channels,
which include interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.
Such published documents together with the latest corporate information
and news are also made available on the website of the Company.

The Company's AGM is a valuable forum for the Board to communicate
directly with Shareholders. The Chairman actively participates at the
AGM and personally chairs the meeting to answer any questions from
Shareholders. The chairmen of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee or in their absence, another
member of the respective committees or failing that their respective duly
appointed delegate, are also available to answer questions at the AGM.
The chairman of any independent board committee formed as necessary
or pursuant to the Listing Rules (or if no such chairman is appointed, at
least a member of the independent board committee) should also be
available to answer questions at any general meeting of Shareholders to
approve a connected transaction or any other transaction that is subject to
independent Shareholders’ approval.
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Communication with Shareholders (continued)

During the year, the 2018 AGM was held on 23rd May, 2018. The
attendance record of the Directors at the 2018 AGM is set out in the
section headed “The Board" of this report.

Due to another business engagement, Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei, the
Chairman of the Board, was unable to attend the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 23rd May, 2018. However, Mr. Edwin Lo King Yau,
an Executive Director of the Company, took the chair of that meeting and
all Independent Non-Executive Directors including chairmen of the audit,
remuneration and nomination committees were present thereat and were
available to answer questions to ensure effective communication with the
Shareholders.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings for each
substantial issue, including the re-election of retiring Directors.

The notice to Shareholders is to be sent in the case of AGM at least 20
clear business days before the meeting and to be sent at least 10 clear
business days in case of all other general meetings. An explanation of the
detailed procedures of conducting a poll is provided to the Shareholders
at the commencement of the meeting. The Chairman answers questions
from Shareholders regarding voting by way of a poll. The poll results are
published in the manner prescribed under the requirements of the Listing
Rules.

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all
Shareholders having a right to vote at general meetings as at the date
of deposit of the requisition can request the Directors to convene an
extraordinary general meeting ("EGM”) by sending a written request to the
registered office of the Company (“Registered Office”). Such requisition
must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with at the EGM
and must be authenticated by the person or persons making it. Besides,
Shareholders may make a proposal (“Proposal”) at a Shareholders’
meeting by submitting it in written form to the Board at the Registered
Office in accordance with the Companies Ordinance and the Articles
of Association where applicable. The Proposal shall be in the form of a
proposed resolution, which shall clearly and concisely set out the Proposal
for discussion and be relevant to the Company's business scope.

||
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Communication with Shareholders (continued)

The Board updated a shareholders’ communication policy in August
2017. A Shareholder may serve an enquiry to the Board at the Registered
Office for the attention of the Board in written form, which shall state the
nature of the enquiry and the reason for making the enquiry. In addition,
Shareholders can contact Tricor Tengis Limited, the share registrar of the
Company, for any questions about their shareholdings.

Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted the Dividend Policy effective on 1st January,
2019. The Company's Dividend Policy aims at providing reasonable and
sustainable returns to its shareholders whilst maintaining a position of
financial stability which allows the Company to take advantage of any
investment and expansion opportunities that may arise from time to time.

The Board may declare or propose dividends on an annual basis and/or
may declare interim dividends or special dividends. Proposal or declaration
of dividends by the Board is subject to consideration of the Company's and
the Group's operating results, accumulated and future earnings, gearing,
liquidity position, capital commitment requirement and future expansion
plan as well as general economic conditions and external factors that may
have impact on the financial performance and position of the Company
and the Group. In addition, as the Company is a holding company, the
Board will also consider the dividends received from its subsidiaries and
associates as the ability to pay dividends by the Company is dependent on
the dividends received from those subsidiaries and associates.

The Board will regularly review the dividend policy and will amend and/or
modify the dividend policy if necessary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Amendment of Articles of Association

For the year ended 31st December, 2018, the Company made certain
amendments to the Articles of Association, which has been approved in
2018 AGM and adopted as the new articles of association of the Company.
Please refer to the circular of the Company dated 18th April, 2018 and
the announcements of the poll results of the 2018 AGM dated 23rd May,
2018 and 24th May, 2018 for further details.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not made any changes to the
Articles of Association during the year under review. An up-to-date version
of the Articles of Association is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

Corporate Governance Enhancement

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying
and complying with the CG Code of the Stock Exchange but also about
promoting and developing an ethical and healthy corporate culture. We will
continue to review and, where appropriate, improve our current practices
on the basis of our experience, regulatory changes and developments. Any
views and suggestions from our Shareholders to promote and improve our
transparency are also welcome.

On behalf of the Board

Patrick Lee Seng Wei
Chairman

Hong Kong, 13th March, 2019
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

Approach and Strategy

Asiasec Properties Limited believes in delivering long-term, sustainable value
creation to our shareholders. In doing so, we recognise that the choices
we make will have an impact on the communities in which we carry on
our business and we should ensure such impact a positive one. We are
committed to contributing to the sustainable development of society and
the environment, and endeavour to embrace these principles as part of our
practice and governance. The Company has adopted a Sustainability Policy
in August 2017 which covers our principles in the area of employment and
labour practices, business integrity, the environment and the community
and we shall endeavour to embrace these principles as part of our practice
and governance to contribute to the sustainable development of society
and the environment.

The board of directors of the Company (“Board”) has overall responsibility
for the Company's strategy and reporting in respect of Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG") issues and has reviewed the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems, which are put in
place to identify, evaluate and manage the risks of different businesses
and activities, including the ESG-related risks. Based upon the assessments
made by the Company's senior management, subsidiaries’ respective
management and the external auditors, the Board considered that such
systems are effective and adequate.

This report outlines the Group's sustainability initiatives and selected Key
Performance Indicators (“KPI") that are material to the Group and its
stakeholders on ESG issues for the year ended 31st December, 2018. This
report supplements information disclosed elsewhere in this annual report,
and was approved by the Board on 13th March, 2019.

Reporting Scope

The subject areas and aspects are presented based on the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” ("ESG Guide") as set out in
Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)

Materiality Assessment and Stakeholder Engagement

Amongst various environmental and social issues based on the ESG Guide
within the scope of sustainability, the below are the list of issues that are
considered to be material and relevant to the Group. The priorities are
set based on management's view as well as certain conclusions from
stakeholders’ engagement. We regularly engage key stakeholders in daily
operations through meetings, events, and other communications and
feedback channels. Based on management's view, the aspects and KPls
relevant for this report’s disclosure are set out as follows:

Material and relevant issue
Anti-corruption (Aspect B7) general disclosure, KPI B7.2
Other relevant issues

Emissions (Aspect A1) general disclosure
Use of resources (Aspect A2) general disclosure, KPI A2.1, A2.3

The environment and natural resources (Aspect A3) general disclosure, KP!
A3.1

Employment (Aspect B1) general disclosure, KPI B1.1

Health and safety (Aspect B2) general disclosure, KPI B2.3

Development and training (Aspect B3) general disclosure, B3.2

Labour standards (Aspect B4) general disclosure

Supply chain management (Aspect B5) general disclosure

Product responsibility (Aspect B6) general disclosure, KPI B6.2, B6.4

Community investment (Aspect B8) general disclosure

All other aspects of KPI not mentioned above were concluded to be not
relevant for disclosure.

The following ESG issues are presented based on the classification of
provisions by the Stock Exchange’s ESG Guide.

i H'

35



36

Asiasec Properties Limited Annual Report 2018

i
i
=4
R}
pa:|
]
if
=
o
@

A RIBERB

AREZAFHBEERBRBERMHEREEE
Z—BJiEt - AR

-  ATHBERERL B EEREER

- B/ BERSERKAEREHN - MK
TH5  MRELAEREZEZRY)

—  BRARER - REER  KRELR
#

- BERIHREMARERENTENEHE
VRN

- HBEMANET  FRRAFBHELRSE
AREERER  THEHFHERMANR

B URERDERENTE

AHEWTEEMARREREIIERZE
ARERFKNELENERESR AWHET
EEAHMER - RFIRMARETBERBDAE
EIRE RPN BEIRELNENE S -

BEi (BEAT)

REBYTEREMEETHNERZHEET
- ABALERRMES ZBRMER LBR
[REN|ZE - AERAMEERPBERIRER
BB ZBER - RZEHMZMFEIEERE
EERE UEBEERVEREERE  EEKR
FEREKRF - EETEALBEBRANEMAER 2
HEER SRR ©

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)

A.  Environmental Issues

The Group's Sustainability Policy encompasses our general approach
towards environmental issues. We endeavour to:

observe relevant laws and regulations and aim to go beyond
minimum requirements;

—  prevent/minimise air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste;

- make efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other
raw materials;

—  minimise the impact of the Group’s activities on the environment and
natural resources; and

—  engage our staff, customers and partners to promote environmentally
sustainable business practices and constantly re-assess our processes
to minimise environmental impact.

This report does not include the disclosure of all the environmental KPIs
as they are not considered material or relevant as a conclusion of our
stakeholders’ engagement as well as management's view. Instead, we
have discussed our general approach and effort to reduce the Group's
environmental footprint in various aspects.

Emissions (Aspect A1)

The Group is not involved in any manufacturing activities and direct
participating in construction works. Emissions produced are mostly on a
“second degree” basis as incurred during occasional business travels which
is infrequent. In line with our policy to minimise air and greenhouse gas
emissions, major operations are equipped with video conferencing facilities
to minimise the need for face to face meetings and keep business travelling
to @ minimum. There are no relevant laws and regulations applicable to our
business in this aspect.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)

A.  Environmental Issues (continued)

Use of Resources (Aspect A2) and
The Environment and Natural Resources (Aspect A3)

We have adopted a series of internal control policies and procedures to
enhance the efficiency in consumption of resources including energy,
water and other paper. With only 31 staff across the Group, we consume
minimum amounts of electricity and paper and with the efficient use of
such, we hope to minimise our impact on the environment while we grow
our businesses. Water consumption is not material to our business as it
relates mainly to the personal consumption of our staff or for their personal
hygiene.

Environmental protection guidelines for energy savings and reduction in
paper consumption are circulated to all staff at head office and branches.
For instance, staff are reminded to switch off lights and equipment after
work, during lunch break or during the time working outside the office and
wherever possible. Energy efficient office equipment is always preferred
in making purchase decisions. During 2018, the Group's total electricity
consumption was 27,300 kwh, a 519% reduction as compared with 55,700
kwh in 2017.

Since March 2017, electronic board paper systems have been promoted
and implemented throughout the Group, allowing Directors to access
meeting papers online anytime, anywhere with the use of portable
electronic devices, improving Board efficiency whilst saving papers.

For our major activities of property investment and property management

businesses, eco-friendly options are often considered and where possible/
appropriate are implemented in operations and maintenance works.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)
A.  Environmental Issues (continued)

Use of Resources (Aspect A2) and
The Environment and Natural Resources (Aspect A3) (continued)

These include:

—  to replace compact fluorescent lamps with LED lightings;

—  to replace traditional electrical lift systems with WWF system;

—  to use environmental friendly refrigerant gases for air-conditioning
units selection;

- to place recycling bins in the prominent place to encourage waste
separation awareness amongst our customers;

- to carry out routine maintenance of lighting, air-conditioning and
water pipe systems to prevent the loss of natural resources;

- to replace air-cool with water-cool air-conditioning system;

- to use more economical and efficient method to reduce noise, dust
and debris for waterproofing repair and maintenance; and

—  to install water efficient taps in washrooms and promoting concepts
of water conservation to our customers.

Except for the abovementioned, the Group's business has no direct impact
on the environment and natural resources.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)

B. Social Issues

Employment, Health and Safety and Labour Standards
(Aspects B1, B2, B4)

The Company is substantially an investment holding company and with
subsidiaries involved in real estate, property leasing and management
services. Our people are our most important assets that drive the long-term
development and sustainability of the Company. The Group's policy on
employment is as follows:

—  observing relevant laws and regulations;

—  being an equal-opportunity employer, implementing fair practices
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-

discrimination, and other benefits and welfare for our staff;

- providing a safe, healthy and quality workplace and protecting
employees from occupational hazards;

-  promoting a good work-life balance for staff;
—  investing in training and professional development of our staff for the
purpose of improving their knowledge and skills for discharging duties

at work;

- maintaining an open dialogue with our staff, facilitating a transparent
two-way communication; and

- no child and forced labour.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)

B. Social Issues (continued)

Employment, Health and Safety and Labour Standards
(Aspects B1, B2, B4) (continued)

The Group’s employment of staff is subject to the Employment Ordinance,
the Minimum Wage Ordinance, as well as the Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance. The Group has no known non-compliance with the above
relevant regulations.

Our compensation and benefits (including working hours, rest periods,
welfare) need to be competitive with other peers in the same sectors and
in general exceeds the minimum as required by the relevant regulations.
Owing to the nature of our businesses, work related injuries, occupational
health issues and the incurrence of child labour are not significant risk
factors.

The Group endeavours to provide a safe and pleasant working environment
for our staff. On top of this, well-being programmes such as those
promoting a good work-life balance are regularly offered to staff.

As at 31st December, 2018, the Group employs a total of 31(2017: 39)
staff in Hong Kong.
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B. ftEE&Ewm) B. Social Issues (continued)
BISH Staff Breakdown
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BR HdEREAHREE) ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)

B. ftEE&Ewm) B. Social Issues (continued)

BRRIEN(EBEB3) Development and Training (Aspect B3)

AEBMANERARINBERFEZE 2L - B  The Group is committed to fostering a culture of continuous leamning in
EEHEEREFAEMERNBE MR TIE  our organisation. Our employees are encouraged to pursue work-related
U BHREESEHET2LEHFERREE - advanced studies and attend seminars and workshops to hone their
RZZE—N\F REBEMBE ITHEIERHESE  skills. We support our people by providing study subsidies to facilitate the
80.5/NRF(ZF—+H4F : 37/\F) © professional development of our employees. During 2018, staff training
across the Group amounted to 80.5 (2017: 37 hours) hours in total.

EANEF B 2 4 Training hours breakdown
—F-)N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
tzq el o) ® it Male
By Gender ® V% Female

100% 100%
—E-)\F —FT—+tF
IR 2018 2017 ® RET
LR ARSI General staff
By Grade
® EBREET
Managerial staff

27% 41%

73% 59%
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)

B. Social Issues (continued)
Supply Chain Management (Aspect B5)

The Group's general business suppliers include providers of information
technology and communication, premises, legal and other business services
as well as vendors for office supplies. These are not considered to pose
significant social risks for our business and procurement decisions are
based on pricing, suitability as well as the general reputation of suppliers.

Product Responsibility (Aspect B6)

The Group is responsible for providing a quality, safe and healthy living and
working environment to the tenants and visitors of its leased properties. We
listen for our tenants’ feedback and make continuous progress to improve
our service quality. Daily site inspections are conducted and frequent
communications with our tenants are maintained with an aim to uphold a
high standard of service quality. During 2018 and 2017, the complaint rate
is low and most of the complainants accepted or were satisfied with our
replies. The Group puts the best effort to response instantly to the problem
and complaint submitted by the tenant.

Anti-corruption (Aspect B7)

As the Group has zero-tolerance on any forms of bribery, corruption and
fraud, it has established a Whistle Blower Policy detailing situations in which
acceptance of advantages is allowed. Key principles concerning prevention
of bribery and channel for reporting suspected cases are set out in the
Anti-corruption Code (“Code”). Employees are required to undertake their
adherence thereto. Besides, internal control activities are in place to detect
malpractices. Upon receipt of any reported issues, the management will
conduct investigation and handle them in the manner set out in the Code.
During 2018 and 2017, there were no known cases of non-compliance
with the above laws and regulations.

Community Investment (Aspect B8)

We strive to excel for our customers and undertake the responsibility of a
good corporate citizen contributing to the community by encouraging our
staff to enroll in charity and social services.

In 2018, we organized two staff events: Skip-a-meal in June and
Mooncakes for Charity in September. Funds raised from both events have
supported World Vision to provide food, health care and nutrition and
livelihood assistance to children and families affected by conflicts in Syria,
South Sudan and Myanmar, and the member social welfare agencies
supported by The Community Chest of Hong Kong. il
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The board of directors of the Company (“Board”) presents its annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively “Group”) for the year ended 31st December,
2018.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities and details of its principal subsidiaries and associates as at 31st
December, 2018 are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group's revenue for the year was derived mainly from activities carried
out in Hong Kong. The breakdown by principal activities of the Group's
revenue and the contribution to profit before taxation for the year ended
31st December, 2018 is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Business Review

Detailed review of the Group's business is set out in the Chairman’s
Statement (“CS") on page 6. Future development of the Company’s
business is set out in the CS on page 8. An analysis of the Group’s
performance during the year using financial key performance indicators is
provided in the CS on page 7.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group adopts a comprehensive risk management framework. Risk
management policies and procedures are regularly reviewed and updated
to react to changes in market conditions and the Group's business strategy.
The audit committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”) reviews risk-
related policies and scrutinises that management has performed its duty
to have effective risk management and internal control systems necessary
for monitoring and controlling major risks arising from the Group's business
activities, changing external risks and the regulatory environment, and
reports to the Board on the above.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Business Review (continued)
Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)
Financial Risk

Financial risk includes market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Market risk
concerns that the value of an investment will change due to movements
in market factors and which can be further divided into interest rate
risk, foreign currency risk and other price risk. Credit risk is the risk of
losses arising from clients or counterparties failing to make payments as
contracted. Liquidity risk concerns that a given security or asset cannot be
traded readily in the market to prevent a loss or make the required profit.
Further discussion on financial risk management is outlined in note 31(b)
“Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies” to the consolidated
financial statements.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is concerned with possible losses caused by inadequate or
failed internal processes, people, systems or external events. Operational
risk is mitigated and controlled through establishing robust internal controls,
setting out clear lines of responsibility, proper segregation of duties and
effective internal reporting and contingency planning. It is our corporate
culture that the business and operating line management are fully aware of,
and responsible for, managing the operational risks of their business units
on a day-to-day basis. Independent monitoring and reviews are conducted
by the internal audit team which reports regularly to the Chairman of the
Board and the Audit Committee.

Uncertainties

The Group's business and profitability growth in the year under review are
affected by the uncertainty of the property market. The supply and demand
of the properties, government interventions over the property market price,
house price indexes and interest rates change in Hong Kong may induce a
material adjustment on the Group's business, financial position and resuilts.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Business Review (continued)
Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of the environment
and communities in which it operates. Acting in an environmentally
responsible manner, the Group endeavours to comply with the laws and
regulations regarding environmental protection legislated by the local
government for managing the properties.

The Group is also committed to building an eco-friendly corporation. It is the
Group's aim to reduce the impacts of its operations on the environment.
The environmental policies of the Group include minimising consumption
of paper and electricity, reducing waste and promoting the use of electronic
communication and storage.

Further information on the Group’s environmental issues also detailed in
the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 34 to 43.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has complied
in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Group. During
the year, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss on page 66 and in the accompanying notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Board has declared an
interim dividend of HK10 cents per share (in lieu of a final dividend) for
the year ended 31st December, 2018 (2017: second interim dividend of
HK25 cents per share) payable on or around Wednesday, 10th April, 2019
to the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on Friday, 29th March, 2019.
Details are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

Debentures
The Group has not issued any debentures during the year.
Equity-Linked Agreements

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the
Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

Borrowings

The Group does not have any borrowings apart from the amounts due to
associates which is interest free and the details of which are set out in note
29 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st December, 2018,
calculated under part 6 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622), amounted to HK$157,706,000 (2017: HK$345,062,000).
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Properties

Particulars of major properties of the Group as at 31st December, 2018 are
set out on pages 10to 11.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Directors

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Patrick Lee Seng Wei
(resigned as Chief Executive and appointed as Chairman,
both on 4th January, 2018)

Lee Shu Yin
(appointed as Chief Executive and Executive Director,
both on 4th January, 2018)

Edwin Lo King Yau

Tao Tsan Sang

Non-Executive Director:

Lee Seng Hui
(resigned as Chairman and Non-Executive Director,
both on 4th January, 2018)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Li Chak Hung

Choi Kin Man
Lisa Yang Lai Sum
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Directors (continued)

In accordance with Article 105(A) of the articles of association of the
Company (“Articles of Association”), Mr. Li Chak Hung, Mr. Choi Kin Man
and Ms. Lisa Yang Lai Sum shall retire from office by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

A list of names of all the directors who have served on the boards of the
Company's subsidiaries during the year are available on the website of the
Company under the “Corporate Governance” section.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
Executive Directors

Patrick Lee Seng Wei (“Mr. Lee”), aged 67, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company in November 2016 and was the Chief
Executive of the Company during the period from December 2016 to
January 2018. Mr. Lee was appointed as the Chairman of the Board and
chairman of the executive committee of the Company in January 2018.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Being an
architect, he worked for IBM Australia before becoming involved in property
development in Malaysia and Hong Kong more than thirty years ago. He
has extensive experience in the property field. Mr. Lee is the managing
director and an executive director of Tian An China Investments Company
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company. He is a cousin of Mr.
Lee Seng Hui who is a former Director and one of the trustees of Lee
and Lee Trust (a discretionary trust and a controlling shareholder of the
Company).
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
(continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Lee Shu Yin (“Mr. SY Lee”), aged 52, was appointed the Chief
Executive, an Executive Director and a member of the executive committee
of the Board of the Company in January 2018. He is also a director of a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. He holds a Master's Degree
in Finance from the London Business School, and Bachelor of Arts and
Bachelor of Science Degrees from Stanford University. Mr. SY Lee is a
Chartered Financial Analyst charterholder. He has over twenty years of
experience in corporate finance, investment and management. Mr. SY Lee
is currently the chief investment officer of Grand River Properties (China)
Ltd., a Shanghai-based real estate investment consulting company that
he co-founded in 2003, and also an executive of PGR Asian RE Fund GP,
Ltd., which managed a property-related investment account of a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Tian An China Investments Company Limited (“TACI"),
the controlling shareholder of the Company. He is also an independent
non-executive director of Altus Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8149), a
company listed on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
Mr. SY Lee was previously a non-executive director of TACI during the
period from March 2011 to June 2017 and an executive director of the
same company during the period from June 2017 to January 2018. He
also held various positions as a vice president and director in the Asian
Equities division of JP Morgan Securities Limited/Robert Fleming Securities
while based in London, New York and Boston and as an executive director
of Goldman Sachs International in Hong Kong.

Edwin Lo King Yau, aged 58, was appointed an Executive Director of the
Company in November 2016. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Lo holds a Master's Degree in Applied Finance from
Macquarie University, Australia and is a chartered company secretary. He
had served various executive roles in several companies in Hong Kong
including as company secretary for public listed companies. Mr. Lo is
also an executive director of each of Allied Group Limited and Tian An
China Investments Company Limited, the substantial shareholders of the
Company.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
(continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Tao Tsan Sang, aged 54, was appointed an Executive Director of the
Company in November 2016. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Tao holds a Master's Degree in Business Administration
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is an associate of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants. He has extensive experience in accounting,
financial management and China business field. He is also an executive
director and the financial controller of Tian An China Investments Company
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Li Chak Hung, aged 54, was appointed an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in March 2017. Mr. Li graduated from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong and holds a Bachelor's Degree of
Business Administration. Mr. Li is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising)
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of
The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He has over 25 years' experience in
accounting, auditing, taxation and financial management. Mr. Li is currently
an independent non-executive director of Summit Ascent Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 102), DreamEast Group Limited (formerly known
as SkyOcean International Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 593) and
Sandmartin International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 482), and was
an independent non-executive director of Alibaba Pictures Group Limited
(formerly known as ChinaVision Media Group Limited) from September
2004 to June 2014, whereas all companies are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Choi Kin Man, aged 59, was appointed an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in March 2017. Mr. Choi graduated from Jinan
University holding a Bachelor's degree in Journalism and from University of
South Australia with a Master's degree in business administration. Mr. Choi
has over 15 years of experience in the media and public relations industry,
and is currently the managing director of Shima & Co. Limited. Mr. Choi was
previously a director of Capital Communications Corp., and had participated
in a number of public relations and communications projects.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
(continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (continued)

Lisa Yang Lai Sum, aged 52, was appointed an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company in March 2017. Ms. Yang graduated
from the University of Sydney with a Bachelor's Degree in Law and
Economics and is also qualified as a solicitor in Australia and England. She
is a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong and a consultant of ONC Lawyers. Ms.
Yang is also an independent non-executive director of each of Allied Group
Limited and Tian An China Investments Company Limited, the substantial
shareholders of the Company. She was appointed an independent non-
executive director of China Medical & HealthCare Group Limited in
December 2018.

Senior Management

Cynthia Chen Si Ying, aged 52, is the Company Secretary of the
Company. She joined the Company in April 2011. Ms. Chen holds a
Bachelor's Degree in Business Administration and a Master's Degree in
Corporate Governance. She is a fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and a fellow of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators. She has more than seventeen years' extensive
experience in the company secretarial practice and has over twenty-five
years' experience in the management of large and well-known enterprises,
and she has worked in Singapore for more than three years.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (“AGM") has an unexpired service contract with the Group
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Terms of Office for the Non-Executive Directors

Save for Mr. Lee Seng Hui who resigned as a Non-Executive Director on 4th
January, 2018, all the Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent
Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs")) were appointed for a specific term of
two years which shall continue until 31st December, 2020 but subject to
the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or any other applicable
laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from their office.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Directors’ Interests

At 31st December, 2018, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations,
within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO"), as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules").

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

During the year and up to the date of this report, the following Directors (not
being the INEDs) are considered to have interests in the businesses listed
below which compete or are likely to compete with the businesses of the
Group pursuant to the Listing Rules as set out below:

1. Messrs. Lee Seng Hui (resigned on 4th January, 2018), Patrick Lee
Seng Wei, Edwin Lo King Yau and Tao Tsan Sang are directors of
TACI which, through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly engaged in the
businesses of property investment and property management;

2. Mr. Lee Seng Hui (resigned on 4th January, 2018) is a director
of Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited ("APL") which, through certain
of its subsidiaries, is partly engaged in the businesses of property
investment and property management;

3. Messrs. Lee Seng Hui (resigned on 4th January, 2018) and Edwin Lo
King Yau are directors of Allied Group Limited (“AGL") which, through
certain of its subsidiaries, is partly engaged in the businesses of
property investment and property management; and

4. Mr. Lee Seng Hui (resigned on 4th January, 2018) is one of
the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust which is a deemed substantial
shareholder of each of AGL, APL and TACI which, through their
subsidiaries, are partly engaged in the businesses of property
investment and property management.

Although the above-mentioned Directors have competing interests in
other companies by virtue of their respective common directorship or
shareholding, they will fulfil their fiduciary duties in order to ensure that
they will act in the best interests of the Shareholders and the Company
as a whole at all times. Hence, the Group is capable of carrying on its
businesses independently of, and at arm’s length from, the blusinesses of
such companies.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which the Directors
or an entity connected with the Directors had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, its
fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors or Chief Executives (including their spouses and
children under the age of 18) of the Company had any interests in or
was granted any right to subscribe in any shares, underlying shares, or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation.

Management Contracts

Save for employment contracts and agreements relating to the sharing
of administrative services and management services, no other contracts,
relating to the management and/or administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
subsisted during the year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Articles of Association provides that every Director or other officer
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise
in relation thereto. In addition, the Company has maintained appropriate
directors and officers liability insurance in respect of relevant legal actions
against the Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Substantial Shareholders' and Other Persons’ Interests

To the best of Directors’” knowledge, as at 31st December, 2018, the
following Shareholders had interests in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section

T: 336 of the SFO:
RECRTROREMERRZHE
Number of shares and underlying shares interested
EBAER FEER EHERE BT
(LESES (SZhEE 3Vt
ASRER) ZHER) EBHESL
Personal Corporate Approximate
Interests Interests % of the
(held as (interest of Hftiga €L relevant total
KRB beneficial controlled Other Total number of
Name of Shareholders owner) corporation) Interests Interests issued shares
REFBEREBRAT([RZ]) - 930,376,898 - 930,376,898 74.96%
Tian An China Investments Company Limited (Bret1) (Btst2)

("TACI") (Note 1) (Note 2)
BahE(BE)ARAR(HAE]) - 930,376,898 - 930,376,898 74.96%
Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited (“APL") (K17#3) (K15#2)

(Note 3) (Note 2)
BAasEBRAG([HARE]) - 930,376,898 - 930,376,898 74.96%
Allied Group Limited (“AGL") (Hiit4) (Hiz22)

(Note 4) (Note 2)
Lee and Lee Trust - 930,376,898 - 930,376,898 74.96%

(Hi5#5) (K15#2)

(Note 5) (Note 2)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests
(continued)

Notes:

1. The interest was held by Autobest Holdings Limited (“Autobest”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Advance Growth Investments Limited (“Advance Growth"). As
Advance Growth is a wholly-owned subsidiary of TACI, TACI was therefore deemed
to have an interest in the shares in which Autobest was interested.

2. The figure refers to the same interest of TACI in 930,376,898 shares.

3. APL owned approximately 48.66% of the total number of issued shares of TACI
and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares in which TACI was
interested.

4. AGL owned approximately 74.99% of the total number of issued shares of APL
and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares in which APL was
interested.

5. Mr. Lee Seng Hui, a former Director, together with Ms. Lee Su Hwei and Mr. Lee
Seng Huang are the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust, being a discretionary trust.
The Lee and Lee Trust controlled approximately 74.95% of the total number of
issued shares of AGL (inclusive of Mr. Lee Seng Hui's personal interests) and was
therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares in which AGL was interested.

6. All interests stated above as at 31st December, 2018 represent long positions as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

Employees

As at 31st December, 2018, the Group, excluding associated companies,
employed 31 (2017: 39) persons, all (2017: all) were employed in Hong
Kong.

In addition to basic salaries, employees in Hong Kong are provided with
medical insurance and some of them are included under a defined
contribution provident fund scheme and mandatory provident fund scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

During the year ended 3 1st December, 2018, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company's shares.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 12 to 33.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float as required under the
Listing Rules.

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the AGM to re-appoint Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Patrick Lee Seng Wei
Chairman

Hong Kong, 13th March, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

=ED

TO THE MEMBERS OF ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Asiasec Properties
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group”) set out on pages 66 to 167, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31st December, 2018, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31st
December, 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.



Wi BEN RS (1))

FAREAZEIE ()

ARERER
Key audit matter

REMERZMGE

Valuation of investment properties

BAEREMXEERESBREZTH BN REMEMLE
HiZRMEHRRBEEBMEBEN - URREEAABER IR
ERHN -

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined with
the significant judgements associated with determining the
fair value.

WA AT ISMEWTI5MEE - EEBEZIREWEEN
RAEBREEEZHEEAEEREES  R_E—N\F+=
BA=+—HB#1{E%1376380,0008 T - REE_-ZT— /\F
+TZA=1+—RHILLFE W BREREMEZAAEBEEFA
25,631,000/ L E 4R & 1Bk ATER ©

As disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s investment properties which
represent commercial and residential properties and
carparks located in the People’s Republic of China and Hong
Kong carried at HK$1,376,380,000 as at 31st December,
2018. During the year ended 31st December, 2018, a
change in fair value of the Group's investment properties
of HK$25,631,000 was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

BEEBZMARENEDZEB YA EREEFTHAED([FHE
B )T 2 RER AR BEETE o SERERS REEEHE
ZETEZRRXREIZHARE  SEEARKEER  ER K
ERER Bz mSEMES -

All of the Group's investment properties are measured at
fair value with reference to the valuation performed by an
independent and qualified professional valuer (the “Valuer").
The valuation depends on certain significant assumptions and
key inputs that involve management's judgements, including
term yield, revisionary yield and market unit rent.

DRBEFRLE T/ \FFR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

BMRERTEERRERERZHE
How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BB RERHEIREYE 2 AEZIEF 815

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

« FHERHEENZBED - RN REFEIL

. Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the Valuer;

- ERFTEEMEEBIENRIE  METSH KRR - HE
PRz E2RR - MEMAZBRAGEHEE RS
AR

. Understanding the Valuer's valuation process and
methodology, the performance of the property markets,
significant assumptions adopted, critical judgmental
areas and key inputs used in the valuation;

© HETERBZ DERBRRZEEN + &

. Evaluating the reasonableness of the methodology and
assumptions to industry norms; and

« RERMEMEDENAE - EBRLBRERBEZER
S8 - fHEEIRE RS RAZ ERH AR
BRI -

. Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs
adopted by management and the Valuer by comparing
to entity-specific information and market data based on
our knowledge of the property markets.
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BIABEEES(B) INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

FAREZEIEE)

REEXER
Key audit matter

Key Audit Matters (continued)

BEMREETSERRFRERZISE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HFERARSEARMEZANREARRERERZRFIR(EARZAKERARFEERRZREIR ) (MBS W

BUHHESMRENF LTREES)

Valuation of investment in equity instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income (“equity
instrument at FVTOCI”) (previously known as unlisted equity securities classified as available-for-sale

financial assets)

BB REMEERSIZ AR BEREZ RATAETE SR
REZFEH ARNBEREZEAABER SR IEAHIE -

We identified the valuation of equity instrument at FVTOCI
as a key audit matter due to the significant judgements
associated with determining the fair value.

EEERE MEENEMEREZIFELETRAFT B ZHK
XS EABREMEENREZRARBEEREZKRATA -
WAERE MR E - EEEZAHEESHE
ENELITMBERABZLAN _E—\E+-_A=1+—H:H&E
A37,664,00087C c REZE-E—N\F+_A=1+—HIF
- EZREtEEKEEARBEREZRAT AZEHETER
E2mkzEANA1,134,0008 7T °

The Group held 5% equity interest in an unlisted company
which is principally engaged in property investment and is
classified as equity instrument at FVTOCI. As disclosed in
note 19 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group's
equity instrument at FVTOCI which are measured at fair
value carried at HK$37,664,000 as at 3 1st December, 2018.
During the year ended 31st December, 2018, a change in
fair value of equity instrument at FVTOCI of HK$1,134,000
was recognised in other comprehensive income.

BEREZEBEMERAKERAABEREZRATATZ
ZHEENET 2 BERAABEERE - HEDE  BEMBZ
EZRJ[LEEIBHABBZFBENGEEMBREMEI 1 (OW
E - BERERIMERBHEH CETERRRAERBAR
& BEERREE  BERREE  mHEVES RRZZES
MTIHEFZITHE

The fair value of the Group's equity instrument at FVTOCI
is determined with reference to the valuation performed by
the Valuer. Details of the valuation techniques, significant
assumptions and key inputs used in the valuation are
disclosed in note 31(c) to the consolidated financial
statements. The valuation depends on certain significant
assumptions and key inputs that involve management's
judgements, including term yield, reversionary yield,
market unit rent and discount for lack of control and lack of
marketability.

HMBENAEEE M EERER AR EERIEZBATAZ
MEZRFEE:

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the valuation of
equity instrument at FVTOC! included:

« AHMERHEERZ BSES - BENRFEIM

. Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the Valuer;

- ERITEEMAEEBRIERITE  METS KRR - HE
ik E2WR - HEMAZBARAGRHEE RS
AR

. Understanding the Valuer's valuation process and
methodology, the performance of the property markets,
significant assumptions adopted, critical judgmental
areas and key inputs used in the valuation;

< EBRPIAEEXFGE 28 - FHEEBEM R
BIRARBEERECRATE/TERE 2 7 E KRR
EEM R

. Evaluating the appropriateness of the methodology in
the valuation of equity instrument at FVTOCI with the
assistance of our internal valuation specialist; and

. BBLBEBETEHRTGSEE  FEERERTE
WA 2 £ ERR RS AR Y A B R MASE
ST B R B RS AT SR 2 i
i -

. Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions
and inputs adopted by management and the Valuer
by comparing to entity-specific information and market
data and with the assistance of our internal valuation
specialist on liquidity and discount for lack of control
and lack of marketability.
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FAREAZEIE ()

MREZER

Key audit matter

FERBEATZHES
Valuation of interests in associates

HIEHE AR 2 ST RRERERER - i EEEK
LRAEZERE BREEZGRUBHRERAG —E246E - U
MREERSEREREERRBE QR ZMEFREERILS R
BREME RRYMEZ AR BEZEXRAL -

We identified the valuation of interests in associates as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the Group's interests
in associates in the context of the Group's consolidated
financial statements, combined with the significant
judgements associated with determining the carrying value of
interests in associates.

BRI RARM T 17R340)FIRE - SE@ T EH)
EMEERKMERENEE QA 52,681,713,0007%8
TG AN EBEELIS57% °

As disclosed in notes 17 and 34(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group's associates of
HK$2,681,713,000, representing approximately 57% of
the Group's total assets, are principally engaged in property
development and property investment.

BERER SRR Z BRI KA - WIREIER RS
MEEMEER R ERRETHE  TEHRREMELA
BEEHMEL AT EBE AR ZGE - ERERBGHERH
B WKEE TE2HRIEEIREARE - eFEARREE
EEmRE L EFIEL M5 EMEE -

The Group's interests in associates are carried at cost and
adjusted for post-acquisition profits and other comprehensive
income that mainly contributed by changes in fair value of
investment properties, in which the fair value as calculated
by the Valuer is based on certain significant assumptions and
key inputs that involve management's judgements, including
term yield, revisionary yield and market unit rent.

DRBEFRLE T/ \FFR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

EMRERPRERRTERERZSE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BB RERHAREE AR 2 a2 s Hh 2 7B

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the valuation of
interests in associates included:

«  FRHAEEESBEARNESNEIRERTRE  FHE
FHEEDZBEES) - BN RFEIL

. Assessing the appropriateness of management's
accounting for interests in associates; evaluating the
competence, capabilities and objectivity of the Valuer;

- ERFEEZGEBRENRIE  METSH KRR - HE
ik E2RR - HEMAZBARAGEH LT RS
A

. Understanding the Valuer's valuation process and
methodology, the performance of the property markets,
significant assumptions adopted, critical judgmental
areas and key inputs used in the valuation;

« HETTERREZIERBRRZAEN Rk

. Evaluating the reasonableness of the methodology and
assumptions to industry norms; and

« RERMEVETEHNE  BELBRERRTELEN
K5 e - sHHEIRE R AR ATRA Z 28 AR
Bz REN -

. Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs
adopted by management and the Valuer by comparing
to entity-specific information and market data based on
our knowledge of the property markets.
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Wi BEN RS (1))

HApE R

BERARZER(EF ) HEMBENAR - HibE
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EEAREREREERHAAGEG TEH
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ATBRE - LHERBERAUBREVEY
e B S SR T B B A SR IR T Y
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BT ILEE - HBRUL 2SN EE M EFRAITTHY
A BRIARAURELEREREE -

ERERAREE

BERENTEHREIBIE -

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Other Information

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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TRWEGRAT —T—\FER
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made

by the Directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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TRWEGRAT —T—\FER
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor's
report is Wong Kuen.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 13th March, 2019

|
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RERaER

BE—F—NFL-A=1—HILFE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

PROFIT OR LOSS
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

—EB-N\F T —tF
2018 2017
B &E FET FET
NOTES HKS"000 HK8'000
Yezd Revenue 5 58,454 60,004
HAA Other income 6 10,581 5,725
HAtbFzm Kk EE Other gains and losses 7 (1.181) 1,552
e RZ=m Rent and rates (1,965) (1,461)
BFERE Building management fees (6.374) (6,326)
BEXA(BEZEEHE) Staff costs, including directors’
remuneration (12,988) (13,660)
e R Depreciation and amortisation (568) (2,165)
HERIRE Repairs and maintenance (1.328) (940)
Hih Rz Other expenses (8.003) (5,472)
Rt AREWMEZ AR BEEE) Operating profit before change in fair
B 45 A value of investment properties 36,628 37,257
BEMEZ AR EBEZS) Change in fair value of investment
properties 15 25,631 46,295
FSvingil Operating profit 62,259 83,552
FEAR B & A B Share of profit of associates 56,302 99,051
B 258 A A Profit before taxation 118,561 182,603
FriSfisz Income tax expenses 8 (5.814) (13,438)
NE A Profit for the year 9 112,747 169,165
b7/ (il
HK cents HK cents
B E T Earnings per share
BN Basic 12 9.08 13.62
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FeESREMZAKRER CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
BEr —F— )| E+ - H=+—HIFEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018
ZEB-N\F —T—tF
2018 2017
F#T FHET
HK$°000 HK8'000
AN e A Profit for the year 112,747 169,165
Hih e mEk=(ER) : Other comprehensive income (expense):
TEEN P HEERm 2 HE - Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
Bh&R Surplus on revaluation of
— B T R EEY) — Leasehold land and buildings 2,619 60,815
— e e — Land use rights 9,767 9,015
12,386 69,830
FHREMEEREIRA L BERE Change in fair value of equity instrument
ZBRARTEN AR BES at fair value through other
comprehensive income (1,134) -
BEMBHIBEESHTE Deferred tax effect on revaluation (6,882) (4,856)
4,370 64,974
BE1Z IR EH D AR R 1 a A A Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
AHHESREEZ AR EBEE Change in fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets - 2,152
HEREAR Currency translation differences (1,101) 719
(1,101) 2,871
REFHMPE MY @ RTE Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax 3,269 67,845

RNEE 2 H W BT Total comprehensive income for the year 116,016 237,010
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REMBERRAE

R-FE—NFEFZHA=1+—H

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

at 31st December, 2018

—EB—\F —T—tF
2018 2017
k=g FHET FHET
NOTES HKS'000 HK8'000
BE ASSETS
ERBDRE Non-current assets
I E R NG Property, plant and equipment 14 933 3,647
"EMHE Investment properties 15 1,376,380 1,326,939
T3t A Land use rights 16 - 10,151
NN Interests in associates 17 2,681,713 2,724,401
AHHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 18 - 49,298
FENETR Loan receivables 21 125,032 -
FREMEEEERAREERE Y Equity instrument at fair value through
AT H other comprehensive income 19 37,664 -
(e Club memberships 10,500 -
4,232,222 4,114,436
REEE Current assets
FENFIE « FENERA - RE R Debtors, prepayments, deposits and
H Ath e GRIE other receivables 20 11,839 8,783
FEWE K Loan receivables 21 70,952 28,235
JrE LB = X RIBREX Amounts due from associates 29 200,229 222,717
RIEREIFT1S 75 Income tax recoverable 1,637 -
EEARN BB =185 25 Non-pledged time deposits with original
2 TFEHITFRR maturity of over three months 22 - 73,323
RERBEEE Cash and cash equivalents 22 198,001 447,088
482,658 780,146
HEE Total assets 4,714,880 4,894,582
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DRBEFRLE T/ \FFR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

R-F— ) EF+-H=+—H at 31st December, 2018
—Z—-\F —T—+tF
2018 2017
k=g F#T FEr
NOTES HK$°000 HK$000
a2 EQUITY
[N Share capital 23 681,899 681,899
1 Reserves 3,827,251 4,021,498
HER Total equity 4,509,150 4,703,397
a&f® LIABILITIES
SERENAR Non-current liabilities
BEFTISHAE Deferred tax liabilities 24 170,881 161,407
R Current liabilities
BN ERTE R Creditors and accruals 25 27,334 26,940
FESTES A BIBR SR Amounts due to associates 29 7.416 1,288
FERT RS AL Income tax payable 99 1,550
34,849 29,778
HARE Total liabilities 205,730 191,185
HBRESRAR Total equity and liabilities 4,714,880 4,894,582
HFENFEEF167B 260K HmKREN=  The consolidated financial statements on pages 66 to 167 were approved
T-NEFE=AT=-ERKEETS@BLEFEELEE - and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 13th March, 2019
Wl TIEFHREE - and are signed on its behalf by:
ERE BRit
Patrick Lee Seng Wei Edwin Lo King Yau
= BE
Director Director
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FeEcEEER CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
BEr —F— )| E+ - H=+—HIFEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018
##E nx ER
23 Efffkle Efitls FEGE REETH EREE
Investment Property
Share  revaluation  revaluation Exchange Retained
capital reserve reserve reserve profits Total
TAT THT TAT TET TET TAT
HK$000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
WZE—tF—A—H  Atlstlanuary, 2017 681,899 32,831 8,444 (7,181) 4374337 5,090,330
EREH Profit for the year - - - - 169,165 169,165
TifFRERMAELH  Change in fair value of land
Rsme use rights and leasehold land
MBEEED and buildings - - 64974 = = 64974
AELsEEY  Changein fair value of
NAEEED available-for-sale financial assets - 2,152 - - - 2,152
KEREAE Currency translation differences - - - 719 - 719

TEEAMZEYE Other comprehensive income
for the year - 2,152 64,974 719 - 67,845

AEE2EMEEE  Total comprehensive income

for the year - 2,152 64,974 719 169,165 237010
IRZEEE Dividend relating to 2016
REME13) (Note 13) - - - - (310,606) (310,606)
INZB—+FR Dividend relating to 2017
ReHii3) (Note 13) - - - - (310,606) (310,606)
R EEE(H23) Repurchases of shares
(Note 23) = = = = (2,731) (2,731)
RZE—+F At 315t December, 2017
+-R=1+-H 681,899 34983 73418 (6,462) 3,919,559 4,703,397
FREF Profit for the year - - - - 112,747 112,747
TFRERAELHL  Changein fair value of land
BEMDABEZE  use rights and leasehold land
and buildings - - 5504 - - 5,504

BREME AN Change in fair value of equity
BARBEREZRA  instrument at fair value

TAVAREES through other
comprehensive income - (1,134) - - - (1,134)

REHEER Currengy translation differences - - - (1,101) - (1,101)
REEEM2E(EH)  Other comprehensive (expense)

e income for the year - (1,134) 5,504 (1,101) - 3,269
AFE2E(ERE)RE  Total comprehensive (expense)

Ft income for the year - (1,134) 5504 (1,701) 112,747 116,016
THEB=F—t%F  Dividend relating to 2017

REHizi3) (Note 13) - - - - (310263) (310.263)
R-B-N\F At 31st December, 2018

TZRA=+-A 681,899 33,849 78,922 (7,563) 3,722,043 4,509,150
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FEHEaRExR CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

BEr —F— )| E+ - H=+—HIFEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

—Z—\FE —T—+fF
2018 2017
FHET FET
HK$°000 HK$000
BERYK OPERATING ACTIVITIES
R A% Bl 4 A Profit before taxation 118,561 182,603
A Adjustments for:
PTE REE Depreciation and amortisation 568 2,165
YREE 5B 18 (F28) Net exchange loss (gain) a7 (1,605)
HEMS - Hl K (Gain) loss on disposal of property,
Ft 2 (Fla) EiE plant and equipment (2) 53
RESHA ARG H Y Impairment loss on financial assets
TREERERE at amortised cost 766 -
BEMEARBEZE Change in fair value of investment properties (25,631) (46,295)
il eI E S Share of profit of associates (56,302) (99,051)
REFEREAM R E S Dividend income from equity instrument
BARBEREZ at fair value through other
AT A Z R EHA comprehensive income (1,500) -
RENHERAIMHESREE Dividend income from unlisted equity
Z I ETRERAF S securities classified as available-for-sale
il 35U UN financial assets - (1,500)
HRITHSUA Bank interest income (4,456) (4,706)
B A S Loan interest income (5.787) (877)
EEECEIRIZ Operating cash flows before working capital
EER ST changes 26,634 30,787
FEURRIA ~ TR - 1RE K Increase in debtors, prepayments, deposits and
L Ah i W R IR S AN other receivables (3.056) (204)
e FRIE K e =t B AR N Increase in creditors and accruals 394 469
REEEEB RSN Cash generated from operations 23,972 31,052
B EBAEHR Hong Kong profits tax paid (6.286) (3,398)
REEEXEBZERBE NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 17,686 27,654
BEEY INVESTING ACTIVITIES
HEME - MR R Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
PiS equipment 59 562
BEWE - B AR Purchases of property, plant and equipment (182) (40)
BTER Loan advanced (168,681) (28,235)
2 UERTT A Bank interest received 4,456 4,706
B E A2 Loan interest received 5,787 877
NGV Repayment from associates 121,453 -
FRYEEE AR R AR 8 = 1 H Placement of non-pledged time deposits
FHZ FREFERZIFA with original maturity of over three months - (103,401)
FREEAR IR RN E =18 A Withdrawal of non-pledged time deposits
E|877 TE BiE 2 R AN with original maturity of over three months 73,323 181,154
BYCRBEREM R EKRIE AR Dividends received from equity instrument at
BEEREZBRATAZEE fair value through other comprehensive income 1,500 -
BEYCRERIHEESREE Dividends received from available-for-sale
ZBRE financial assets - 1,500
BURBEE AT ZIRE Dividends received from associates 154,123
RENRREZHSFE NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 37,715

. 211,246

\M



72

Asiasec Properties Limited Annual Report 2018

SFeRe&RBRE) CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)
BEr —F— )| E+ - H=+—HIFEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018
ZZ—-\F —E—tF
2018 2017
b FET FET
NOTES HKS000 HK$'000
MEXE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
&1 [E1 5% Repurchases of shares 23 - (2,731)
R AR E N AR Advance from associates 6,128 -
BEARE Dividend paid 13 (310,263) (621,212)
ARREXBEZHLBE NET CASH USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES (304,135) (623,943)
BeRR&EEHAH NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
WOBE CASH EQUIVALENTS (248,734) (385,043)
REMZHRER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
H&EEER AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 447,088 830,427
SIERBENBZHE EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES (353) 1,704
REXZHER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
BR&EEHEEHE AT END OF THE YEAR 198,001 447,088
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

1. General

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong
and its securities are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”). Its parent is Autobest Holdings Limited (incorporated in
British Virgin Islands) and its ultimate parent is Tian An China Investments
Company Limited (incorporated in Hong Kong and listed on the Stock
Exchange). The address of the registered office which is also principal place
of business of the Company is disclosed in the “Corporate Information”
section of the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "Group”) are property investment, property leasing and
estate management. The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA")

for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments

HK (IFRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual Improvements;to

HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Prope
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (continued)

Except as described below, the application of the above new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on
the Group's financial performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the current year.
HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction
Contracts” and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with the cumulative effect
of initially applying this standard recognised at the date of initial application,
Tst January, 2018. Any difference at the date of initial application is
recognised in the opening retained profits (or other components of equity,
as appropriate) and comparative information has not been restated.
Furthermore, in accordance with the transition provisions in HKFRS
15, the Group has elected to apply the standard retrospectively only
to contracts that are not completed at 1st January, 2018. Accordingly,
certain comparative information may not be comparable as comparative
information was prepared under HKAS 18 “Revenue” and HKAS 11
“Construction Contracts” and the related interpretations. HKFRS 15 applies
to all contracts with customers except for leases which are within the scope
of HKAS 17 “Leases”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued)

The Group recognises revenue from the following major sources:

. Rental income from investment properties (not within the scope of
HKFRS 15);

. Estate management fees (within the scope of HKFRS 15); and
. Dividend income from equity instrument at fair value through other

comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") (not within the scope of HKFRS
15).

Information about the Group's performance obligations and the accounting
policies resulting from application of HKFRS 15 are disclosed in notes 5 and
3 respectively.

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15

The application of the HKFRS 15 has no significant impact on the timing
and amounts of revenue recognised in the current year and retained profits
at 1st January, 2018.

|

75



76

Asiasec Properties Limited Annual Report 2018

REMBRRMEGR)
HE=E—/\F1+=f=+—AULFE

2. A REET BB HHRE
ER([BETBHHREZER ) )

\)

REFEERNERZHEITRESTEEME
WS (W)

FEYBEHEER TR LHBT R

RAEE - AEEERAEEVBMELAEISR
[ERTA | MABEEMEEMBREERNHERM
Ba] - BAMBREERFIRIA : (EREE
RemaEnoBENGTE  (DeREENTEHE
EER(TBHREEER)) ki) —REF a2
B °

AEBEREBEEEVHRELEAEIRAEAEE
G EBEEMBREERFN - AEHHER
AERE(RERE) EYPRAR_Z—/\F—A
—B (MM EH) HARBURERN LA - B
EEZEREEAN -\ —A—HBEEH
BROTLA - —E—tF+-A=+—HBNKE
BE-_ZF-N\F—A - BNKREEZHNHZRER
HAER B N R E o i s AR B D h HERR - R B
BIILLEER

Eit - EEREBERIRBE BT ERFIN S/
TA : ERANTEIMRR - FTASE THERERR
WEBALM -

EREBYBRERAFIRNEG
BFE3HRER -

FHBUOR 2 BRI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
and the related consequential amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9
introduces new requirements for (i) the classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities; (i) expected credit losses (“ECL") for
financial assets; and (iii) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the transition provisions
set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the classification and measurement
requirements (including impairment under ECL model) retrospectively
to instruments that have not been derecognised as at 1st January, 2018
(date of initial application) and has not applied the requirements to
instruments that have already been derecognised as at 1st January, 2018.
The difference between carrying amounts as at 31st December, 2017
and the carrying amounts as at 1st January, 2018 are recognised in the
opening retained profits and other components of equity, without restating
comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be comparable
as comparative information was prepared under HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9 are disclosed in
note 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9

(a) Available-for-sale financial assets
Reclassification of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group elected to present in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income (“OCI") for the fair value changes of
all its equity investments previously classified as available-for-sale financial
assets. These investments are not held for trading and not expected to be
sold in the foreseeable future. At the date of initial application of HKFRS
9, HK$38,798,000 was reclassified from available-for-sale financial assets
to equity instrument at FVTOCI. The fair value gains of HK$28,743,000
relating to the investment were reclassified to equity instrument at FVTOCI
continued to accumulate in investment revaluation reserve. In addition,
the Group's club memberships of HK$10,500,000 were reclassified from
available-for-sale financial assets to club memberships.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9 (continued)

(b) Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure ECL which uses
a lifetime ECL for all trade debtors. To measure ECL, trade debtors have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics.

ECL for other financial assets at amortised cost mainly comprise of cash and
cash equivalent, other receivables, amounts due from associates and loan
receivables which are measured on 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") basis and
there had been no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

The impairment was considered as insignificant at the date of initial
application, 1st January, 2018.

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

The amendments clarify that a transfer to, or from, investment property
necessitates an assessment of whether a property meets, or has ceased to
meet, the definition of investment property, supported by evidence that a
change in use has occurred. The amendments further clarify that situations
other than the ones listed in HKAS 40 may evidence a change in use, and
that a change in use is possible for properties under construction (i.e. a
change in use is not limited to completed properties).

At the date of initial application, the Group assessed the classification of
certain properties based on conditions existed at that date, there is no
impact to the classification at 1st January, 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 16 Leases!
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments!

Definition of a Business#

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Definition of Material>

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement!

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures!

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2015-2017 Cycle!

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2021
4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the acquisition

date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after 1st
January, 2020

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2020

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below, the
Directors anticipate that the application of all other new and amendments
to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of lease
arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees.
HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of whether
an identified asset is controlled by a customer. In addition, HKFRS 16
requires sales and leaseback transactions to be determined based on the
requirements of HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of the relevant asset
should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16 also includes requirements
relating to subleases and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the
lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease
liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of
lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of cash flows, the
Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash
flows in relation to leasehold lands classified as investment properties.

Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability
will be allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing cash flows by the Group. Upfront prepaid lease
payments for leasehold lands classified as investment properties will
continue to be presented as investing cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset and a related
finance lease liability for finance lease arrangement and prepaid lease
payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The application
of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in classification of these assets
depending on whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately
or within the same line item at which the corresponding underlying assets
would be presented if they were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable to lessor, HKFRS
16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in
HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental deposits
received of HK$13,492,000 as rights and obligations under leases to
which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of lease payments under
HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to the right to use the
underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits may
be adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits
received would be considered as advance lease payments.

|
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The application of new requirements may result in changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above. The Group
intends to elect the practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that
were previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int
4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply
this standard to contracts that were not previously identified as containing
a lease applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4. Therefore, the Group will
not reassess whether the contracts are, or contain a lease which already
existed prior to the date of initial application. Furthermore, the Group has
elected the modified retrospective approach for the application of HKFRS
16 as lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of initial application to
opening retained profits without restating comparative information.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for certain properties and financial instruments, that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
“Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which are transacted at
fair value and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be used
to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation technique is
calibrated so that at initial recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.
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FEMBHERMEGE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BEr —F— )| E+ - H=+—HIFEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

3. BEEREHEE@® 3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

AN - BB FSHE B E - A BEFERE  In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
AR BETENREATENSIMNEEARER categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs

2YH AL BEAEZENEEY - DEAFE—  to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
- BoME=R - BHWMAT ¢ inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

- FH2HERSEESAGEEERMS L ¢ Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
P (SRR ) T B 48 fEsT 28 A Al IS for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
KBRS measurement date;

- FBIR2HARTNEEXHEEBAISGE B - Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
TNEERE-—RHNBEANEENAEBE Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
R indirectly; and

- FE=R2BREEXABETEBTIAUBRAEE - Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
e

BEIBEEIIAT - The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint,control

over those policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Interests in associates (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting.
The financial statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate. Changes in net assets of the
associates other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
not accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group's share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group's interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment
in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method
from the date on which the investee becomes an associate. On acquisition
of the investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within
the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the interest
in an associate may be impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Interests in associates (continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group (such as
a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate are recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that are
not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of
HKFRS 15 in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of
goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.

Revenue from estate management services is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation based on output method, which is to recognise
revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the value of the services
transferred to the customer to date relative to the remaining services
promised under the contract, that best depict the Group's performance in
transferring control of services, when the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's performance as the
Group performs.



88

Asiasec Properties Limited Annual Report 2018

e MEERMEGE)

BE—F— )\ F+=F=1—HILEE
3. B BOR (E)
WARZ(R=S—\E—F—HH)

WARBRRERRBZAABEFERERS
¥T5EEP D RERSS NRREIE RITH) 2 UK
S8 o

IWARESERREAI SEHATE - RRCENZ BB
AIEEMAAEE R ZEAEE XK 2B TEIERER
LAZERKBFRERR + ZA NPTt o

RELEMERLNMENHESRARBHEE
BV ERIRBEAREASR

MEREEBERHURGERER -

WA E WCER 2 B% B U 7E 2N 2 [ 7 T A5 Uk B e )
FFIERR ©

SREEEEYFIBRATRBIEE - L2
WA MRS BRRIER 2 ERARHE -
B FIR A5 BS RARE S T A E GG
KRB SWAFTRE L AER G RERES 2 EE
FE -

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (prior to 1st January, 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for services provided in the
normal course of business, net of tax and discounts.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below.

Rental income from properties leased out under operating leases is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant lease.

Estate management fee is recognised when the services are rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group's rights
to receive payment have been established.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment less their residual value over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the item is derecognised.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying amount and its fair value
of that item at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in property revaluation reserve. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant property revaluation
reserve will be transferred directly to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties which are held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair value. All of the Group's property
interests held under operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are classified and accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value model. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties are included
in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year in which the
property is derecognised.

Land use rights

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building are
considered separately for the purpose of lease classification, unless the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally treated as finance
lease and accounted for as property, plant and equipment. To the extent
the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably, leasehold
interests in land are accounted for as operating leases.

The up-front payments to acquire leasehold interests in land are accounted
for as operating leases and are stated at cost and release over the lease
term on a straight-line basis.

Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment losses on assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that these
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of tangible assets are estimated individually, when
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
except for trade debtors arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 since 1st January, 2018.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income and
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition. Dividend income which are derived from the Group's
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon
application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is
to collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon
application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at FVTOCI:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL"), except that at the date of initial recognition of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in OCI if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3
“Business Combinations” applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near
term; or
. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial

instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designed and effective as a hedging
instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that are
required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured
at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.



94

Asiasec Properties Limited Annual Report 2018

7 & B 35 80 RO R (48)

HE=F—\FF A=, —HIFE
3. BEEGFTBERGM)
SMIA(H)

LHETEM)

THEENTEREREE (REN E268918)%
1R X JE &7 B R 5 28 A BRI E 938 ) (#8)

()  EESERCRRFIBHA

MEBMARERIZEERAA B EREBEERE
BREATEFARMEZERSTEZEBTA
FEYR IR R BB R ZOXHER - MBWAZE B
ERMEAREMEERRAENRGSE - HEHER
EEREERENEREE (R TIORIN - A
REEREERENEREEMNS @ MEBKRAZE
BEERNEARAE TEREHEFNEREE
BIERAKIER - WiEERESRIANEER

R ESEMEETBRITERERE  RIFS%K
AEHTERETBRRBEERER - BRKER

MNEARBREHRBETNEREERREE
HRHER ©

(iy FEREMEARSZAABEEREREZBEA
TA

AREERIRAEEBEM RTINS RALE
R AT AW IFHEEE - RB%IA
RRAR BESHFEENKERSTNES
Sty 2 El 2R R R B BT 5 WA
RTRIERENE - PRNBRTLENHBE

HERBERER 2 BENER  SXAKERBK
BB HENE  EEREREBRERATAR

EHANMERE  BRIFELERERABRAMBER
B es TR E - EREREZ S WMAEARKE
FETE A AR B FERR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon
application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)

(i)  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost and debt
instruments/receivables subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the determination that the asset
is no longer credit-impaired.

(i)  Equity instrument designated as at FVTOCI

The investment in equity instrument is designated as at FVTOCI as the
Group considers it is not held for trading. It is subsequently measured at fair
value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in OCl and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve; and is not
subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not
be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments, and
dividends from these investments in equity instruments are recognised in
profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is established,
unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the “revenue” line item in profit or
loss. Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group's
rights to receive payment have been established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions
in accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets which
are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade debtors and
other receivables, amounts due from associates, cash and cash equivalents
and loan receivables). The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12m
ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. Assessment are done based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade debtors. The ECL on
these assets are assessed collectively for trade debtors based on shared
credit risk characteristics.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to
12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition. The ECL on these assets are accrued individually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions

in accordance with note 2) (continued)

®

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial

recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the

financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default

occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.

In making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and

qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including

historical experience and forward-looking information that is available

without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing

whether credit risk has increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk,
e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant decrease
in the debtor's ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results
of the debtors; and

an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions
in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes
that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on a debt
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the
debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting
date. A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has
a low risk of default; (ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and (jii) adverse changes
in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit
risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of “investment grade” as
per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions
in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(i)  Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event of
default occurs when information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals held
by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has occurred
when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of default that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because
of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions
in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating
that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade debtors, when the amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or
loss.

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss
given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions
in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases where
evidence at the individual instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped on the following basis:

. Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's trade and other
receivables, finance lease receivables and amounts due from
customers are each assessed as a separate group. Loans to related
parties are assessed for expected credit losses on an individual basis);

. Past-due status;
. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
. External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the
constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all
financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade debtors where the corresponding adjustment is recognised through
a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1st January, 2018)

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories:
available-for-sale financial assets and loan receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets is determined at
the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available for sales or are not classified as financial assets at
FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as available-for-
sale and are traded in an active market are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period except for unquoted equity investments
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured. Changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale debt instruments relating to interest income
calculated, using the effective interest method, are recognised in profit or
loss. Dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are recognised in
profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is established.
Other changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale financial assets
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under
the heading of investment revaluation reserve. When the investment is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified

to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
debtors, other receivables, amounts due from associates, non-pledged time
deposits with original maturity of over three months and cash and cash
equivalents) are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except
for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest would be
immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1st
January, 2018)

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1st
January, 2018) (continued)

For the other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

. significant financial difficulties of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

. it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organization.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade debtors, assets that
are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
indicators of impairment on a collective basis.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade debtors,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a trade debtor is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recovery of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on st
January, 2018) (continued)

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period,
the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been the impairment which has not been recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or loss.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of
investment revaluation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an available-for-sale financial asset, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the

assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of

direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

All financial liabilities that include interest-bearing and interest-free
borrowings, trade and other payables are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit
or loss.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(“foreign currencies”) are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange reserve.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases are recorded in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Rental income which are derived from the Group's ordinary course of
business are presented as revenue.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land held under
operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of
rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered services entitling
them to the contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expenses represent the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from the “profit before taxation” as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such
properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

4. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the Directors are required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group's assets are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. The Financial Controller of the Company determines the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.
Significant judgements are used to determining the fair value of these assets.

In estimating the fair value of an asset, the Group uses market observable
data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the
Group engages independent and qualified professional valuer (the “Valuer”)
to perform the valuation. The Financial Controller of the Company works
closely with the Valuer to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model. The Financial Controller reports the findings to the
board of directors of the Company every half year to explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value of the assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

4. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)
Fair value measurements and valuation processes (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are not
based on observable market data to estimate the fair value of investment
properties and unlisted equity securities classified as equity instrument at
FVTOCI (previously available-for-sale financial assets).

When determine the fair values of investment properties, assumptions
and key inputs that involve significant judgements, including term yield,
revisionary yield and market unit rent, were adopted.

When determine the fair value of equity instrument at FVTOCI, which is
principally engaged in property investment, assumptions and key inputs
that involve significant judgements, including term vyield, reversionary yield,
market unit rent and minority discount rate, were adopted.

Notes 15 and 31(c) provide detailed information about the valuation
techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the determination of the
fair value of these assets.

Provision of ECL for loan receivables

The Group determines the ECL for loan receivables based on probability of
default and loss given default for each individual loan as each of them have
different loss patterns.

In determining the ECL, the Group engages the Valuer to perform the
calculation of ECL taking into account on each of the borrower and their
guarantor's background, repayment history of their loans and forward-
looking information that is reasonable and supportable available without
undue costs or effort. The Financial Controller of the Company works closely
with the Valuer to determine the appropriate default rate and loss given
default rate. At every reporting date, the probability of default and loss given
default are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. Information about
the ECL and the Group's loan receivables is disclosed in note 31(b).
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FEMBERERMEGE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BEr —F— )| E+ - H=+—HIFEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018
5. Wam ko abER 5. Revenue and Segment Information
—B-N\F —T—+fF
2018 2017
F#T FET
HK$°000 HK8'000
BEWMENHSHA Rental income from investment properties 49,633 47,054
MEERE Estate management fees 7,321 11,450
REBEBEMEEKGERARBE Dividend income from equity instrument
BR3% 2 IR AR T A RR B A at FVTOCI held at the end of reporting period
R ERMRRIIARE 1,500 -
RESERAIEHESREEL Dividend income from unlisted equity securities
ELEMIRERAFES 2 RERA classified as available-for-sale financial assets - 1,500
58,454 60,004

MEBRENBAR —BRIGHEAER - R&EBEE  Revenue from estate management fees is recognised over time. The

RAEESTEAERMEEEENKA » BB  Group applied the practical expedient in HKFRS to recognise revenue in the

BEEHMNEREN  BERREZKME A amount that the Group has the right to invoice based on the terms of the

EHWMEERE - MREBFTEAE 155K relevant lease agreements in which the Group bills a fixed monthly amount

EEIEZZE-NFTZA=+—HIUFEEF in advance. As permitted under HKFRS15, the transaction price of estate

MYEEEE T HINENBNRT management services allocated to the remaining performance obligations as
at 31st December, 2018 is not disclosed.

RRAFNPATEFDRAR/ZSNEEREKE o The executive directors of the Company have been identified as the chief
WITEFERBAEE 2 E%1% - BR/AEEME  operating decision maker. The executive directors regard the Group's

HERYMEEBRRRAAE—22EHH - Bt ©  business as a single operating segment, which is property leasing and estate
PESAEEN W  XEAREEREBEES management and reviews financial information accordingly. Therefore, no
BT © segment analysis of the Group's revenue, results and segment assets and

liabilities are presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

5. Revenue and Segment Information (continued)

As at 31st December, 2018, other than interests in associates, equity
instrument at FVTOCI, available-for-sale financial assets and loan receivables,
the total of non-current assets located in Hong Kong is HK$1,328,978,000
(2017: HK$1,296,687,000), and the total of non-current assets located
in the People's Republic of China (“PRC") is HK$58,835,000 (2017:
HK$44,050,000).

The Group's revenue is mainly derived from Hong Kong and approximately
HK$8,115,000 (2017: HK$8,079,000) is derived from a single external
customer. No revenue from transaction with other single external customer
has contributed to 10% or more of the Group's revenue for the year.

6. Hmlg A 6. Other Income
—T—\FE —T—+F
2018 2017
F#EiT FAET
HKS000 HKE000
HRITFEMA Bank interest income 4,456 4,706
BERALEMRA Loan interest income 5,787 877
HAth Others 338 142
10,581 5,725
7. HMFz=KERE 7. Other Gains and Losses
—E—)\F —T—+F
2018 2017
FET FET
HKS’000 HK$000
JFEE H (B51R) Al Net exchange (loss) gain (417) 1,605
BB - W RS ER = (EE) Gain (loss) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 2 \ (53)
IRBEK AT E 2 B ERRE Impairment loss on financial assets

at amortised cost (766) -

(1,181) 1,552
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8. PIfSMiXH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

8. Income Tax Expenses

—2—-\F —T—+tF

2018 2017

FET TFrETT

HK$°000 HK8'000

EBFTSH Hong Kong Profits Tax

REE Current year 3,148 4,546
EEERBT R BERE) Under (over) provision in prior years 50 (29)

3,198 4,517

EIERIR (HT7E24) Deferred taxation (note 24) 2,616 8,921

AREERHIEL N Income tax expenses for the year 5,814 13,438

R-Z—N\E=A=-+—H BEELEZEBBE_
T FHBEUEET) (B7HREHIE = ([1EHIE
=) - S AMBRBIFIEHEGIE - FHIERR
- N\F=A=t+N\BEEKAEEELNEHR
HEB® - REMERHFEHESNE  aERKE
EEROE2E S T 112 8.250% 8 B E
Tt iR iE2 B & A T AR A G 121650 ) B 2 L
Tt o A WA SRS S S 0 & B8R
TE1ETE16.50% M F— T REF

On 21st March, 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The
Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill") which
introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into
law on 28th March, 2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of
the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying
for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat
rate of 16.5%.
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DRBEFRLE T/ \FFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

8. Income Tax Expenses (continued)

The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

income tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:

—E2-N\F —T—+fF

2018 2017

F#ET FET

HK$°000 HK8'000

R PT1S A Al A Profit before taxation 118,561 182,603
LEBIEGHHE165%:TE 2FE  Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax of 16.5%

(ZZ—+%F : 16.5%) (2017: 16.5%) 19,563 30,129
TRBE 2 8 Effect of different tax rate 62 119
TR X 2 BIE 2 Tax effect of expenses not deductible

for tax purpose 277 1,092
IERBUA 2 FRIBR & Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose (3.209) (1,823)
FE(G R N Rl m A < IR & Tax effect of share of profit of associates (9,290) (16,343)
BEFEREDCCEEEE) Under (over) provision in prior years 50 (29)
AERYIREIE < TR 2 Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 7 412
PABERERRIAEE Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not recognised

T RIEy e (1,225) (722)
RIS B ETE Income tax at recessionary rate (165) -
Hth Others (256) 603
REFERIAXH Income tax expenses for the year 5,814 13,438

115



116 Asiasec Properties Limited Annual Report 2018

7 & B 35 80 RO R (48) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BEr —F— )| E+ - H=+—HIFEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018
9. AREEHAH 9. Profit for the Year
—Z—\F —T—tF
2018 2017
F#ET FHET
HK$°000 HK$000
REEmMENR Profit for the year has been arrived at
after charging:
e YN E LN Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 454 1,871
BiH T (b R 2 TR E K Amortisation of prepaid lease payments on
land use rights 114 294
FrEMEHEE Total depreciation and amortisation 568 2,165
FehkEMER Salaries and other costs 12,648 13,277
RINEREA Retirement benefit costs 340 383
SETERERE Total staff costs 12,988 13,660
EXESWRAZIREMER Direct operating expenses of investment
BEEREEEA properties that generated rental income 8,868 7,909
WEEEHS WA ZIREEDN Direct operating expenses of investment
HEEEER properties that did not generate rental income 191 52

ZEEA Audit fee 1,236 1,200
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FREMBERME () NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BEr —F— )| E+ - H=+—HIFEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018
10. EEME 10. Directors’ Emoluments
A EN TSI —FE—+4F : of1)EZE2M4%  The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight (2017: nine)
T directors were as follows:

—Z-0\F

2018
e/
REER HER EiFiET

Hittig#l RS FHEIER
Salaries/ Performance Retirement

EEWE  service fees related benefits
Directors’ and other incentive scheme st
fees benefits payments contributions Total
FET FET FET FET FET

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

BiTES Executive Directors

FRE Patrick Lee Seng Wei 10 319 372 - 701
FREB(Hia) Lee Shu Yin (Note a) 10 2,000 167 18 2,195
HR Edwin Lo King Yau 10 - - - 10
g4 Tao Tsan Sang 10 211 249 19 489

40 2,530 788 37 3,395

FHBERZHTEEME EZ@ENEERAAR  The Executive Director's emoluments shown above were for their services
RAREEEH 2R in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

=
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FEMBHERMEGE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BEr —F— )| E+ - H=+—HIFEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018
10. EEMlE @ 10. Directors’ Emoluments (continued)

—E-N\E

2018
we/
REER HER BFEF

Hittig#l RS R
Salaries/ Performance Retirement

EFfEie  service fees related benefits
Directors’ and other incentive scheme #t
fees benefits payments contributions Total
FET FET TET TET FET

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

FRiTES Non-Executive Director
ERIE(Hite) Lee Seng Hui (Note e) - = = - -

PR ZIFHITESME T BENEEEEA  The Non-Executive Director's emoluments shown above were for his
RNEIRAEBERE 2 RIS - services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company
and the Group.

BIEHRTEER Independent
Non-Executive Directors

21k (Hi7th) Li Chak Hung (Note b) 10 111 - - 121

R (Hi7tb) Choi Kin Man (Note b) 10 86 - - 96

1B (ffztc) Lisa Yang Lai Sum (Note c) 10 86 - - 96
30 283 - - 313

FRMBERZEYIERTEETMEEZBENEEIE  The Independent Non-Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were

RERZIRT for their services as directors.

k) Total 3,708
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

10. EEMlE @ 10. Directors’ Emoluments (continued)
—F—tF
2017
e/
PRI E K B RIRRER
At ARz STEIH
Salaries/  Performance Retirement
ik service fees related benefits
Directors' and other incentive scheme FEE
fees benefits payments  contributions Total
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BITEER Executive Directors
FRE Patrick Lee Seng Wei 1 - - - 11
i Edwin Lo King Yau 11 - - - 11
g4 Tao Tsan Sang 11 - - - 11
B (fiatd) Liu Kin Sun (Note d) = - - _ _
RER(Hiatd) Cindy Yung Yee Mei (Note d) = = = = =
33 = = = 33

FRBERZHTEETHEERERNREEELRR
B R AEEER R o

FUITES
FE(Wfite)

Non-Executive Directors
Lee Seng Hui (Note e)

FRBRZIFATEEME T BN FEEFEER
RARANEEER 2R

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

The Non-Executive Director's emoluments shown above were for his
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company
and the Group.
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e MM RMEE(]) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BEr —F— )| E+ - H=+—HIFEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018
10. EFME @) 10. Directors’ Emoluments (continued)
—T+F
2017
e/
MR8 K B4R RRTRA
H iz Bz e BEES
Salaries/  Performance Retirement
TEE service fees related benefits
Directors’ and other incentive scheme st
fees benefits payments  contributions Total
FET FHET BT FAT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BIFRTER Independent Non-Executive
Directors
2IE (D) Li Chak Hung (Note b) 8 90 - - 98
R (Hr7tb) Choi Kin Man (Note b) 8 70 - - 78
BEF () Lisa Yang Lai Sum (Note c) 8 67 = = 75
24 227 = = 251

TR B IEAITEEMES T E@A®ESIE  The Independent Non-Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were

REE 2R - for their services as directors.

k) Total 295
st - Notes:

@@ RZE—NF—ANBEEZE- (a)  Appointed on 4th January, 2018.

b) RZE—+tF=F+HEZE- (b)  Appointed on 10th March, 2017.

© N+ F=A_+—BHEZE- (¢)  Appointed on 21st March, 2017.

(d) AT+ F=F_+—HEHE - (d)  Resigned on 21st March, 2017.

e RIZZ—\F—AEARHT- (e)  Resigned on 4th January, 2018.
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10. EFME @)

ERIEEE BRI BEEDFBTAATTER
TREEBE  RRAULRES e aERLE
BERERITHGBRIZLRE S M -

REE_Z-N\F+_A=1T—BLFEREZE
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11. {2 B
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SEZEE HMEC8FEN LKE10 - Ei
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A=1T—HLFEZMEMT :

DRBEFRLE T/ \FFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

10. Directors’ Emoluments (continued)

Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei and Mr. Lee Shu Yin perform the function of
the chairman and chief executive of the Company respectively and his
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by the
chairman and chief executive.

None of the Directors waived any emoluments in the years ended 31st
December, 2018 and 2017.

11. Employees’ Emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, there are
two (2017: nil) directors of the Group whose emoluments are included in
note 10 above. The emoluments of the three (2017: five) individuals for
the year ended 31st December, 2018 are as follows:

—Z—\F —T—+F

2018 2017

FET FEr

HK$°000 HK$'000

e REMER Salaries and other benefits 2,124 4,748
HEERM RS Performance related incentive payments 111 -
RINEAFT SR Retirement benefits scheme contributions 51 72
2,286 4,820

ZEATZBE DM The emoluments of the individual are within the following bands:
—B-\F —E—tF
2018 2017
EEHE EEHAE
Number of Number of
employees employees
07T — 1,000,000/ 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 3 3

1,000,001/ ¢ — 1,500,0007% 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 - 2
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FEMBERERME(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BEr —F— )| E+ - H=+—HIFEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

11. & & B

®(®) 11. Employees’ Emoluments (continued)

AEE 7 HMBRRIERITMSFHMKF RS4RI The remuneration policies of the Group are based on the prevailing

EEQFRMANES 2 RBET - WEm4a XN ©  remuneration level in the market and the performance of respective group
RNEEYN ES HEMAME FixhE&Ze5 2 AT  companies and individuals employees. During both years, no emoluments
YEEE B ZE AR B 2 RN were paid by the Group to the five highest paid individuals as an

inducement to join or upon joining the Group.
12. BIREF| 12. Earnings Per Share

AR AR ENS 2 BRREARER T 5805 The calculation of the basic eamnings per share attributable to the owners of

g the Company is based on the following:
ZE-N\F —T—tF
2018 2017
FHET FET
HKS$'000 HK8'000
27 Earnings
PR EFREARRF 2 %5 Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings
(RAFIRREERFEZ =) per share (profit for the year attributable
to the owners of the Company) 112,747 169,165
ZEB—\F —TiE
2018 2017
F +
‘000 ‘000
BB Number of shares
RAFTEFIREREN Z iR Weighted average number of ordinary shares
LRSS for calculating basic earnings per share 1,241,055 1,242,047

AR/ \FER=ZFT—LFERNALLZEETT  No diuted earnings per share for both 2018 and 2017 were presented as
N BEE AL AR =—F—/\FEK=F there were no potential ordinary shares in issue for both 2018 and 2017.
—tFE - WEE2NEREERF -
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FEMBERERMEGE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BEr —F— )| E+ - H=+—HIFEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018
13. IRB 13. Dividends
—2—-\F —T—+tF
2018 2017
F#ET FET
‘000 ‘000
REENRRZDRZKE : Dividend recognised as distributions
during the year:
ENZZE—tF2FERTHRE Second interim dividend for 2017
AR5 paid of HK25 cents per share 310,263 -
BNt FZREHRRE Interim dividend for 2017 paid of
AR5 HK25 cents per share - 310,606
ENZE—ARFEZEFRRE Special dividend for 2016 paid of
AR5 HK25 cents per share - 310,606
310,263 621,212

REBERRE - EFHRERBEE_F—NF=  Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, an interim dividend of
AZTNBLEERTROBERETHBREAFHE  HK$124,106,000, representing HK10 cents per share, based on the
#8/4%124,106,0008 L (ANEA10BMN(ZZ—1+  number of shares in issue as at 29th March, 2019 (2017: second interim
F: ERPHREER25E) - dividend of HK25 cents per share) has been approved by the Directors.
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FEMBEHRRMEE(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BEr —F— )| E+ - H=+—HIFEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018
14, Y13 - Hm KRR 14. Property, Plant and Equipment
HELH
REEN WOERE RERKE RE #at
Leasehold
land and Office Furniture Motor
buildings  equipment and fixtures vehicles Total
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BFE cosT
R=ZT—+F—H—H At 1st January, 2017 93,401 2516 16,531 1,217 113,665
BB E AR Currency translation difference 86 1 4 2 93
BRI EYE Transfer to investment properties (89,674) - - - (89,674)
BE Additions - 40 - - 40
HE Disposals = (283) (279) (840) (1,402)
RZE—tF At 31st December, 2017
+=-A=1+—H 3,813 27274 16,256 379 22,722
(BB Currency translation difference - - Q) - Q)
BYREREME Transfer to investment properties (2,848) - - - (2,848)
BE Additions - 182 - - 182
& Disposals - (224) (16) - (240)
RZZE—N\F At 31st December, 2018
+=A=+—~ 965 27232 16,239 379 19,815
e DEPRECIATION
RZT—t+%—HF—H At 1st January, 2017 13,244 2,374 15,404 547 31,569
BELERE Currency translation difference 34 3 5 2 44
AEFEHE Provided for the year 989 60 726 9 1,871
EREREYFE Transfer to investment properties (13,622) - - - (13,622)
iS58 S Eliminated from disposals - (282) (239) (266) (787)
RZT—t5F At 31st December, 2017
+-A=+—H 645 2,155 15,896 379 19,075
HENERE Currency translation difference - - (1) - @)
REFER Provided for the year 56 50 348 - 454
BEREE Transfer to investment properties (463) - - - (463)
T B R Eliminated from disposals - (167) (16) - (183)
R-ZE—N\&F At 31st December, 2018
+-A=t+—~H 238 2,038 16,227 379 18,882
IRE{E CARRYING VALUES
RZZ—\F At 31st December, 2018
+ZR=+—-H 727 194 12 - 933
RZZ—+4 At 31st December, 2017

+=A=+—~H 3,168 119 360 = 3,647
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FEMBEHRRMEE(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BEr —F— )| E+ - H=+—HIFEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

14, M5 - W KRERE ) 14. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

LA EIHE A - MM REREZINENESGE »  The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated using
W BEXRNERABRERMGTEAFEAFEM  the straight-line method after taking into account of their estimated residual

8 RAZIESENT : vales at the following rates per annum:
gt AR R TR ERF HA
Leasehold land Over the unexpired lease term
BEEY) 30ZE504F
Buildings 30 to 50 years
NEG 20%
Office equipment 20%
RMREE 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
T 20-25%
Motor vehicles 20-25%
15. &M= 15. Investment Properties
—2—-\F —T—+tF
2018 2017
FET T#ET
HK$°000 HK8'000
RE ) At beginning of the year 1,326,939 1,121,881
e 3 {5 FR AR B A Transfer from land use rights 19,804 21,552
W - Hm R EEA Transfer from property, plant and equipment 5,004 136,867
BEREAE Currency translation difference (998) 344
DR EEZE) Change in fair values 25,631 46,295
RER At the end of the year 1,376,380 1,326,939
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FEMBERERME(E)
BE—F— N\ F+=H=F—FAIEE
15. IEWFE &)

AEBZRENENERZBHR _T—N\F
TZA=t—RZAaRBETHEAKEETMA
RERNBY A BREXN L - EREERTEE
RARNE HETHE - REFVENIAEBE
B MENSSEEERESEZRAE -

ZEEETBEREFERL st ARTHEE R BAER
HERIREAES -

RAMEECNEME - HEDES—ENEE
HROEEBLEE  ERE—MAOEROE
EARTSREMMIE < BEEEHAAESE
D) -

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

15. Investment Properties (continued)

The fair values of the Group's investment properties at the date of transfer
and on 31st December, 2018 have been arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out on that dates by Norton Appraisals Holdings Limited, a
firm of independent and qualified professional valuers not connected with
the Group. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

The valuation was principally based on investment method by taking into
account the current rents passing and the reversionary income potential of
tenancies.

For the properties which are currently vacant, the valuation was based
on each of the property interests by capitalisation of the hypothetical and
reasonable market unit rents with a typical lease term and also make
reference to the direct comparison approach. There has been no change
from the valuation technique used in the prior year.

ZE-N\F —T—tF
2018 2017
FEIT FET
HK$°000 HK8'000
FrEIREMFEMNHBEREE Investment properties are all located
WHEEMEA ST in the PRC and Hong Kong and
comprise properties held under:
REHL Long-term lease 1,169,130 1,127,069
HEARE 4D Medium-term lease 207,250 199,870
1,376,380 1,326,939
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

DRBEFRLE T/ \FFR

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

15. Investment Properties (continued)

degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

The following table gives information about how the fair values of the
major investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into which
the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the

LRRE hERER
FREFMGARENR 3 TEEH ELRRSHALRRENRE
Investment Properties  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques ESmiBR2Y Relationship of unobservable
held by the Group hierarchy  and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs for fair value
&R EENE E=R REZBHESE) EABLERE R R IR AERRGRBRAAR AihEEES  AnEERE -
Residential properties Level 3 Investment method (termand ~~ ARVBTEMETHE  BENEZR20F25%(ZF—+4F :  The increase in the term yield would

in Hong Kong

reversionary approach)

IRBHA:
The key inputs are:

(1) BHbEE:
Term yield;

(2) EHEkEE R
Reversionary yield; and

() EREuAMmEELES
Market unit rent of
individual unit

20%2.5%) °

Term yield, taking into account of yield generated from
comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty
of term income secured and to be received, of 2% to 2.5%

(2017: 2% 0 2.5%).

SHABUTSFEESRART AL BYENERTE 4
Bl E R2.5%F3%( T+ : 25%%3%) °
Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market
rental income and unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 2.5% to 3% (2017: 2.5% to 3%).

TEER S REATHRANE - L AL E REM(ER
RE (I - BariEss - A RRiE) - PEmEELRS
NFOSFIRERANELESYAIRGASEL(ZF—t
£ GYHREAIBTEFTHREASIAT) «

Market unit rent compares with direct market comparables
and taking into account of location and other individual
factars such as road frontage, size of property and faciliies.
The range of average market unit rent is from around HK$31
sq.ft/month to HK$52 sq.ft/month (2017: HK$30 sqft/

month to HK$51 sqft/month).

result in a decrease in fair value.

EEREEES A EELE -

The increase in the reversionary

yield would result in a decrease in

fair value.

mHEfsER  ALEEER -
The increase in the market unit rent
would result in an increase in fair

value.
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15. BEWMZE (@)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

15. Investment Properties (continued)

ARRE fEERER

FREFMSHERRNR A FESR ELERSBALRRENME
Investment Properties  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques EERIHRSY Relationship of unobservable
held by the Group hierarchy  and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs for fair value
ASSEPAETEIES E= REE(BRHERE) EHATEN BN FELORERRRTER RS RRASRY BRkEZEE - ArBELE -
Commercial properties Level 3 Investment method (termand ~ ARJREEIHEIER - ARG £ 2. 75%%5%(ZF—+ 5 The increase in the term yield would

in Hong Kong reversionary approach) 25%Z50%) ° result in a decrease in fair value.

Term yield, taking into account of yield generated from
TERHA: comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty  EEYEZHES - A% BEBIE -

The key inputs are:

(1) HHhEE
Term yield;

2) ERkEE:R
Reversionary yield; and

() EREuMmEELES
Market unit rent of
individual unit

of term income secured and to be received, of 2.75% to 5%
(2017 2.5% to 5%).

EABNMSFEREMARMELBENELTE &
B R A3 2500255%( =T~ 4 : 3%25.5%) «
Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market
rental income and unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 3.25% to 5.5% (2017: 3% to 5.5%).

MRS REATHANE - TEHALE REMG(ER
RZ(flin - BEER - MEXDRRIE) - FEHHELE
ENTHETIREAGELEETIREA200EL(ZF
—tF: BYHREA18EREETAIREA205ET) o
Market unit rent compares with direct market comparables
and taking into account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of property and faciliies.
The range of average market unit rent is from around HK§18
sqft/month to HK$200 sqft/month (2017: HK$18 sqft/
month to HK$205 sq ft/month).

The increase in the reversionary
yield would result in a decrease in
fair value.

mEglfeHs  ArEEES -
The increase in the market unit rent
would result in an increase in fair
value.
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FEMBEHRRMEE(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BEr —F— )| E+ - H=+—HIFEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

15. REWVZ= ) 15. Investment Properties (continued)

ARRE EERER

FRAFAEAREDR 3 TESH ELRRSHALARENRE
Investment Properties  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques EERIHRSY Relationship of unobservable
held by the Group hierarchy  and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs for fair value
frRE 2 B E=R REE(BHERE) EEAMEL RN REE NG R FERRAURESYE ABlGEES  AABESE -
Carparks in Hong Kong ~ Level 3 Investment method (term and -~ ARIBETEIERVER: - REMMESR B200(ZF—+F : 20%) ¢ The increase in the term yield would
reversionary approach) Term yield, taking into account of yield generated from result in a decrease in fair value.
comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty
TE2YA: of term income secured and to be received, of 2% (2017:  BEHMHEZHS - A% EEWE -
The key inputs are: 2%). The increase in the reversionary
yield would result in a decrease in
(1) Bk EABUMSFERSMARIELRENENTE £ farvalue.
Term yield; SR A 500 —F—+4F 1 350) «
Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market ~ WREMESHR - AR EESS
2) ERkEE:R rental income and unit market value of the comparable The increase in the market unit rent
Reversionary yield; and properties, of 2.5% (2017: 3.5%). would result in an increase in fair
value.
() EREummSELEe THELASHRERTSREUE LA AGLEREMER
Market unit rent of RE(flm : BbrEs - mENDRRE) - TmnEEe
individual unit #18 A22008 (2245 : HBA26005TT) °

Market unit rent compares with direct market comparables
and taking into account of location and other individual factors
such as road frontage and facilities. The average market

unit rent is around HK$2,200/month (2017: around
HK$2,600/month)
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BE—F—NFL-A=1—HILFE

15. BEWMZE (@)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

15. Investment Properties (continued)

ARRE fEERER

FROFAEARRNR A FESH ELORSBALRRENRE
Investment Properties  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques ESREBR2Y Relationship of unobservable
held by the Group hierarchy  and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs for fair value
frR 2 e F=R REE(BHERE) EHATBH RN FELORR RRTERRSRRASRY BkEEES - AL EEVE -
Residential properties Level 3 Investment method (termand ~ ARIREEME MR - BEBKEEA15%Z25%(ZF—+4F :  Theincrease in the term yield would

in PRC reversionary approach) 1.500%3.5%) ° result in a decrease in fair value.

Term yield, taking into account of yield generated from
IERHA comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty  EEWEZHS A1 BEMIE -

The key inputs are:

(1) HHhEE
Term yield;

() EBUEE: R
Reversionary yield; and

() EREuMmEELES
Market unit rent of
individual unit

of term income secured and to be received, of 1.5% to 2.5%
(2017: 1.5% to 3.5%).

S ABUTSFEASRARTELBMENENTE - &
BREZRNEIN(ZB—LF : 20F4%) -

Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market
rental income and unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 2% to 3% (2017: 2% to 4%).

TEER S REATHANE - T AL E REMB(ER
RE (I - BRETEss - A Rk - PEmEELRS
NTHETHABAARR 40T EETHRERARE200
T(ZB—tF: BYAREAARKI40TEBTHREA
AREI517T) «

Market unit rent compares with direct market comparables
and taking into account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of property and facilities.
The average market unit rent is from around RMB140 sq.m./
month to RMB200 sqm./month (2017: RMB140 sqm./
month to RMB151 sq.m/month).

The increase in the reversionary
yield would result in a decrease in
fair value.

mEEhfeus  ArEELS -
The increase in the market unit rent
would result in an increase in fair
value.
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FEMBEHRRMEE(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BEr —F— )| E+ - H=+—HIFEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

15. REWVZ= ) 15. Investment Properties (continued)

ARRE EERER

FREREERANR A FESR ELERSBALRRENME
Investment Properties  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques EERIHRSY Relationship of unobservable
held by the Group hierarchy  and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs for fair value
USSEAEESES E= REE(BHERE) EEAMEL RN REE NG R FERRAURESYE ABlGEES  AABESE -
Commercial properties Level 3 Investment method (termand ~ ARJERTEVEA05BE - TR HRMRE % 43,50 © The increase in the term yield would
in PRC reversionary approach) Term yield, taking into account of yield generated from result in a decrease in fair value.
comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty
TERY of term income secured and to be received, of 3.5%. EERAEENR - A EEWE -
The key inputs are: The increase in the reversionary
EHABUMSEEREMARAELBMANELHE %5 yield would result in a decrease in
(1) Bk SR E H4% - fair value.
Term yield; Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market
rental income and unit market value of the comparable mEglfeHs  ArEEES -
Q) EEkEE R properties, of 4%. The increase in the market unit rent
Reversionary yield; and would result in an increase in fair

mSEMEEHBRERTEEUE - TR ANERELER value.
@) EREsmsEEe  RER(GIM: REER  NENDRRE)  FOTSEES

Market unit rent of NETRRERARKI3TTL -
individual unit Market unit rent compares with direct market comparables

and taking into account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of property and faciliies.
The average market unit rent is around RMB137 sq.m/
month.
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e MM RMEE(]) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE—FE— | FF+ = F=+—HIFEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018
16. THb{E AR 16. Land Use Rights
ZZ—\F T —tF
2018 2017
FET FHET
HK$°000 HK$000
REA] At beginning of the year 10,151 22,755
ER T A Transfer to investment properties (10,037) (12,537)
s Amortisation (114) (294)
BERE AR Currency translation difference - 227
RER At the end of the year - 10,151
17. RE$ERTE]Z 17. Interests in Associates
—Z—-\F —E—+5F
2018 2017
FET FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
WEMKA - FEET Cost of investments, unlisted 223,816 223,816
FEMRU BT 2 KB K Share of post-acquisition profits and
Hh 2 EME other comprehensive income,
MR B2 net of dividends received 2,457,897 2,500,585
2,681,713 2,724,401
EAR_ZE—NEFER_ZT—tF+=-HA=+—H Details of the principal associates as at 31st December, 2018 and 2017
2 EEBENRFHEENHTE34(0b) © are set out in note 34(b).
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FEMBERERMEGE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BEr —F— )| E+ - H=+—HIFEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018
17. REtE R F 2w () 17. Interests in Associates (continued)
EXBHEBAORCHMESHEE Summarised financial information of material associate
Zeta Estates Limited Zeta Estates Limited
—ZT—\FE T —+F
2018 2017
FETT FET
HK$°000 HK8'000
mENEE Current assets 2,137,521 497,759
ERBEE Non-current assets 6,959,884 8,904,632
UEIN=NE Current liabilities (686,997) (758,573)
ERBEE Non-current liabilities (1,373,666) (1,410,133)
FMEENEEEHE The above amounts of assets and
BHEUATAR : liabilities include the following:
"EME Investment properties 6,959,100 7,895,100
RekReFE Cash and cash equivalents 181 82,027
nPeRmBE(TEERNRIER Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and
EErEARERE) other payables and provisions) (627,320) (732,146)
FERBEBE(TESENTIER Non-current liabilities (excluding trade and
EErEARERE) other payables and provisions) (1,373,666) (1,410,133)
Yezs Revenue 408,329 759,215
BEMEAREEES) Change in fair value of investment properties 85,200 259,100
RNEE 2 H W BT Total comprehensive income for the year 100,083 264,675
FRZNEE[Z 2 B Zeta Estates Limited Dividends from Zeta Estates Limited

fi @S] during the year 98,990 ({1450
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FEMBERERMEGE)
BE—F— )\ F+=F=1—HILEE
17. REEZ N A2 R ()

EXBELARNZIHMERABE(H)

Zeta Estates Limited(#5)

B E R B B AR A B IS TR R HE R A Zeta
Estates Limited#&z A BREIEEBRAAT ¢

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

17. Interests in Associates (continued)

Summarised financial information of material associate
(continued)

Zeta Estates Limited (continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the

carrying amount of the interest in Zeta Estates Limited recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

—E—)\F —E—+F

2018 2017

FRET T8

HK$°000 HK8'000

Zeta Estates Limited Z JF & E Net assets of Zeta Estates Limited 7,036,742 7,233,685
ANES A Zeta Estates LimitedBREI{E ~ Carrying amount of the Group's interest in Zeta

MyfEss (MG A S EERE L 5]33.33%0)  Estates Limited (Proportion of the Group's
ownership interest of 33.330%) 2,345,581 2,411,228

BRI FERME R BIEAER

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually material:

—B—-\F —T—tF
2018 2017
FEIT FET
HKS$000 HK8'000
REBEREE The Group's share of total

ZH W R comprehensive income for the year 22,941 10,835

REENLFHE N EH Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's
SR AA(E interests in these associates 336,132 313,173

HERNREBEZHRBDEERMNRERE 2%
B EAA7,7451000008 L (- T —+ :
8,642,100,0007 7t ) + H #12,712,700,000 & 7T
(== —+ : 3,005,200,000/8 70 ) SFANEEH - T
KEHEABRBRAAEFERAZHAUEER
BENRREMEZARBERAAEETEM
BN 2KFE(—ZE=ZR)  WREBERABEZE
Z2EAMER AR EBESRT ©

The major non-current assets of the associates’ investment properties in
Hong Kong amounting to HK$7,745,100,000 (2017: HK$8,642,100,000)
of which HK$2,712,700,000 (2017: HK$3,005,200,000) was attributable
to the Group. The following table shows the valuation techniques and
inputs used in the determination of fair values for investment properties
of associates as well as fair value hierarchy in which the fair value
measurement are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to
which significant inputs used in the fair value measurements is observable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

B E—F— | F+ = F=+—HIFEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018
17. REGE R 2w () 17. Interests in Associates (continued)

ARRE fEERER
FRERGERENR A FESH ELORSBALRRENRE
Investment Properties  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques ESmiBR2Y Relationship of unobservable
held by the associates  hierarchy  and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs for fair value
fIREEZ BRYR E= REE(BHERR) EEANELBNREENRAE RS AERRSURESYL RENEEES AR BESE -

Commercial properties
in Hong Kong

Level 3

Investment method (term and
reversionary approach)

IRBHA:
The key inputs are:

(1) ek
Term yield;

(2) EHEkEE R
Reversionary yield; and

() EREuMmEELES
Market unit rent of
individual unit

AMBEE R - AR A2 5%E%(—F 1%

25023.0%) ©

Term yield, taking into account of yield generated from

comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty 1

of term income secured and to be received, of 2.5% to 3%

(2017: 25% to 3%).

BHABETERBLMARTAL BNENBLTE &

SERA30Z350(=F

T—+4F 1 300%23.50%) °

Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market

rental income and unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 3% to 3.5% (2017: 3% to 3.5%).

mRENASH BERTRRNE - LA ALEREMER

R& (Pl : lREEH - MRA R

) MG ENES

NENETIREANAREETIREA4ET(ZE L
£ GYHREAETEGTHIREACHET) «
Market unit rent compares with direct market comparables

and taking into account of location and other individual

factors such as road frontage, size of property and faciliies.

The range of average market unit rent is from around HK$31
sqft/month to HK$64 sq.ft/month (2017: K833 s ft/

month to HK$64 sq.ft/month).

The increase in the term yield would
result in a decrease in fair value.

BhEEER  DAREGE-

The increase in the reversionary

yield would result in a decrease in

fair value.

mHEUfsER  ALEEER -
The increase in the market unit rent
would result in an increase in fair

value.
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REMBEERMMEGE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BEr —F— )| E+ - H=+—HIFEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

17. RESE R A2 () 17. Interests in Associates (continued)

KRRE EERER
FREFBHRRNR A FESR ErORSBALRRENME
Investment Properties  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques EERLBR2N Relationship of unobservable
held by the associates hierarchy  and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs for fair value
frREH 2 TRYx E= REA(BHERE) SHATEL B RELORERRRTERRLSURASRY BRkEEES  AAEBELE -
Industrial properties Level 3 Investment method (termand ~ ABYBTEMEIHE - BENEZA3%Z35%(Z5—+F :  The increase in the term yield would

in Hong Kong reversionary approach) 3%)
Term yield, taking into account of yield generated from
TESHA comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty

of term income secured and to be received, of 3% to 3.5%
(2017: 3%).

The key inputs are:

(1) BHheEE
Term yield; B ABUMSEERERARAELBNENELME -

Gl R3S E4%(ZF—1F :35%)

Q) EHEkaX: R Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market

Reversionary yield; and rental income and unit market value of the comparable

properties, of 3.5% to 4% (2017: 3.5%).

(3) EREfAmSELES

Market unit rent of MHEENBREERERMAEUE - DA AE R ER
individual unit & (fin : BAEEE  MENNRR) - FHmHELR

ENTOSTIREASSELESFAREA154BT(ZF
—t5 : BYARBRIIEREETARBAIEL) «
Market unit rent compares with direct market comparables
and taking into account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of property and facilities.
The range of average market unit rent is from around HK$8.5
sqft/month to HK$15.4 sqft/month (2017: HK$7.3 sqft/
month to HK$31 sqft/month).

result in a decrease in fair value.

BERRENR  ArEEHE -
The increase in the reversionary
yield would result in a decrease in
fair value.

mnEl s  ArBEEE -
The increase in the market unit rent
would result in an increase in fair
value.
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18. At ESRMEE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

18. Available-For-Sale Financial Assets

DRBEFRLE T/ \FFR

— T+
2017
FET
HK3'000

AEHESREERS : Available-for-sale financial assets comprise:
IE ETHIRANTE 5 (Hita) Unlisted equity securities (Note a) 38,798
I ETHRZLELEREE Unlisted club debenture 10,500
49,298

Hrat -

Notes:

@) HEEEAERTFENEMERENIFLHTAT (@)  The amount represents the Group's 5% equity interest in an unlisted company,

RIS HE ©

which is principally engaged in property investment.

(b) FALMREHUAABETE AABEFE (b)  All the above investments are stated at fair value measurements are set out in note

ZEMFHBNITRES1(0) °

19. F@REMEEKREALE

BZIRARTA

31(0).

Comprehensive Income

BB 19. Equity Instrument at Fair Value Through Other

—=E—)\F

2018
FET
HK3°000

FEREMEMR SR AR EERREZ
RARTE(freta)

Hrat -

Equity instrument at FVTOCI (Note a)

Notes:

37,664

(@) ZeFEAEETIEBREYELEMIELT AR (@  The amount represents the Group's 5% equity interest in an unlisted company,

HI5%R%HE ©

(b) BB LB AR BESIE - AREFHNH (b))  The above investment is stated at fair value as set out in note 31(c).

FE31(0) °

which is principally engaged in property investment.
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20. RMGRIR - FANERK - e ME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

20. Debtors, Prepayments, Deposits and Other

fth FE UL SR IR Receivables
—E—N\F —T—+F
2018 2017
FET FHET
HKS’000 HK$'000
B 5 RUGRIA Trade debtors 1,439 1,055
H b fE U RIE Other receivables 8,363 5,557
FENERRARIES Prepayments and deposits 2,037 2,171
11,839 8,783

BHRWHBTIAR 2B R EERE R
H o RRFEREINFRBAERAN - Bel
ANEAELRA - AEBEBERHIOREES
THAEP - AREZEBREGRINGRBHE RRE

Ny
©EHE

Trade debtors represent rental and estate management fees receivable
which are receivable on the presentation of debit notes. Rental income is
billed in advance at month-end. The Group generally allows a credit period
of 30 days to its tenant. The ageing of these trade debtors of the Group,

WA RERH R BRER T ¢ net of provisions and in accordance with the revenue recognition dates, is as
follows:

—E—\F —T—tF
2018 2017
FEiT FEIT
HK$°000 HK$'000
30HA Within 30 days 1,332 1,055
31HZE60H 31-60 days 101 -
90H A E Over 90 days 6 -
1,439 1,055
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BE—F—NFL-A=1—HILFE

20. JERUGRIR « FERTERSR ~ e R H
fib & HﬁZ,TAIEME

EBRMR - BNERR - 2E REMEKFR
Z 2 FRRREEIA THIE % BN

DRBEFRLE T/ \FFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

20. Debtors, Prepayments, Deposits and Other
Receivables (continued)

The carrying amounts of trade debtors, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

—E-)\F —E—+F

2018 2017

FET FET

HK$000 HK$000

BT HK$ 8,646 8,664
ARB(TARED Renminbi (“RMB") 88 51
E(E ) United States dollar ("USD") 3,105 68
11,839 8,783

21. BIRE R

RBERR - AEBRFEIEBLE=HERE
H(ZE—+F: 11) FHEET%HE15%(=F
—EF 1 6%) MNZT—tF+=—A=+—HK
EWERBIERRN = nyﬁ AR - R=F
—\F+ZA=+—HMERERTERRRE
ER YR NEFE+—AE=T=—F1+A
(=T —tF : ZZT—)\FXA) 2WT :

21. Loan Receivables

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has loan receivables from
three (2017: one) independent third parties which bear interest rate
ranging from 7% to 15% (2017: 6%) per annum. The loan receivables as
at 31st December, 2017 has been extended the maturity date to March
2020. The loan receivables as at 31st December, 2018 are unsecured
and guaranteed and have maturity dates ranging from November 2019 to
October 2021 (2017: June 2018) and are analysed as follows:

—E—)\F —E—+F

2018 2017

FEIT FET

HK$000 HK$000

JEmENEE Non-current assets 125,032 -
MEEE Current assets 70,952 28,235

195,984 28,235
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BE—F—NFL-A=1—HILFE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

21. BIWER@®)

HE_Z-N\F+RA=+—HNEKRERZH

BB KT EES 1 (D) HEE -

R E SR 2 £ MIREEA T EH BB

21. Loan Receivables (continued)

2018 is disclosed in Note 31(b).

following currencies:

The loss allowance provision for loan receivables as at 31st December,

The carrying amounts of the loan receivables are denominated in the

—E—)\¥§ —T—+F

2018 2017

FET FET

HK$°000 HK8'000

BT HK$ 70,952 =
ARHEE RVIB 27,537 28,235
x7T usb 97,495 =
195,984 28,235

22. BERRNEB=EAZHE

22. Non-Pledged Time Deposits with Original Maturity of

BER RekBHeSE over Three Months, Cash and Cash Equivalents
—Z—-\F —E—+5F
2018 2017
FEIT FET
HKS$'000 HK8'000
EIERRENER=EA T8 Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity
T HTF R of over three months - 73,323
RERBRCEFEY Cash and cash equivalents:
RITHER LIRS Cash at bank and in hand 98,001 32,995
FERRIRTT IR Short-term bank deposits with original maturity
(BER =188 R2H) within three months 100,000 414,093
RenBRZ2BER Cash and cash equivalents for cash flow
ReFBMAM statements analysis 198,001 447,088




REMBRRMEGR)
BE=F—\F+=f=1—HULFE

22, EEARNEBS =AM E
HER/ RekReFE@®)

RZE—+F+=ZA=+—8 ' =@ANULHT
RARE 2 RERBRITERRENEH BN T
0.80%Z0.90% 1 3.95% % 4.30% ° A =F— )\ F
+TZA=+—H BHekReFEEFHRITH
B F R 1.980E2.1000( —ZF—+H4F : 0.15%=E
0.90%) ©

RAZSABB=EANBZENER AR
% SN FIE I T R OBRE AN T 5%
AT -

DRBEFRLE T/ \FFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

22. Non-Pledged Time Deposits with Original Maturity of
over Three Months, Cash and Cash Equivalents
(continued)

As at 31st December, 2017, the non-pledged bank deposits of more than
three months in HK$ and RMB carried prevailing market rates ranging from
0.80% to 0.90% per annum and from 3.95% to 4.30% respectively. As
at 31st December, 2018, the cash and cash equivalents carry prevailing
market rates ranging from 1.98% to 2.10% (2017: 0.15% to 0.90%) per
annum.

The carrying amounts of non-pledged time deposits with original maturity
of over three months/cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the
following currencies:

—E—\f§f T+

2018 2017

FHET FHIT

HK$°000 HKg'000

7T HK$ 193,484 470,190
AR RMB 4,511 10,468
ESy usb 6 39,753
198,001 520,411
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FEMBEHRRMEE(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BEr —F— )| E+ - H=+—HIFEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018
23. f&RZR 23. Share Capital
—Z-N\F —T—+tfF
2018 2017
Bin&H TFET Mt & B FET
Number of Number of
shares HK$°000 shares HK$'000
BETRER Issued and fully paid:
n—H—H At 1st January 1,241,054,945 681,899 1,242,424,945 681,899
& (B B Repurchases of shares - - (1,370,000) -
Kn+=—A=+—8 At 31st December 1,241,054,945 681,899 1,241,054,945 681,899

Bliit - R—_ZE—tFAEBRBMIAMEREARE 2  Note: The Group acquired 1,370,000 of its own shares through purchases on the Stock

B% 15 1,370,000% - M XMz p 2 BB 4A Exchange in 2017. The total amount paid to acquire the shares was HK$2,731,000
2,731,000/ 7T B AR B @ FI R F0RR © P/ BIFEAR which has been deducted from retained profits. All the repurchased shares were
I © cancelled.

RBE-F—LF+-A=1t—"HIEFE A2 During the year ended 31st December, 2017, the Company repurchased

FIRE R ATRE B A A & BN T its own ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange as follows:
e R RES
bR B E BERBERR (HIBXBASZAT)
Number of  Purchase consideration Aggregate
ordinary per share consideration
EIfE AR shares RmE RIEE  paid (before
Date of repurchases repurchased Highest Lowest expenses)
#T T BT
HKS HK§ HK§
—E—tFNAATAA 19th September, 2017 500,000 1.97 1.95 983,390
—E—tFNA=TH 20th September, 2017 172,000 1.99 1.97 341,280
—E—tFNA=-F+FHH  25th September, 2017 500,000 1.99 1.98 994,730
—ZT—tFNA=T~H 26th September, 2017 198,000 1.99 1.99 394,020
mEt Total: 1,370,000 2,713,420
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FEMBEHEME(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BEr —F— )| E+ - H=+—HIFEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

24, EEFIBEAE 24. Deferred Tax Liabilities

MAEERBEFEEHRRANELCHEAEREE  The followings are the deferred tax liabilities recognised and movements

oo ¢ thereon during the current and prior years:
BEA L
ME BER
LREE REMRE Hit st
Land
appreciation
Fair value tax and
of properties other tax Other Total
FET FHET FHET T
HK$'000 HK3'000 HK8'000 HK'000
RZZE—tF—H—H At 1st January, 2017 147,459 = 171 147,630
RERNB Bk Charge to profit
or loss for the year 7,764 1,051 106 8,921
RS FEER Charge to property
revaluation reserve — 4,856 — 4,856
RZZE—t5F At 31st December, 2017
+=A=+—H 155,223 5,907 277 161,407
PERE BN (BE)  Charge (credit) to profit or loss
for the year 2,525 (83) 174 2,616
RS FEEBNR Charge to property
revaluation reserve — 6,882 - 6,882
FRE SHOF B REEHIBR Charge to exchange reserve - (24) - (24)
R=ZZ—/)\F At 31st December, 2018
+=ZA=+—-H 157,748 12,682 451 170,881

REEER REEHEBAEE R EF 2K At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax losses of
B i TE B 18 13,250,000 Tt ( — T — 4 approximately HK$13,250,000 (2017: HK$20,630,000) available to offset
20,630,000 7T) ° AR EETERAR AT - #3F  against future assessable profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
ERLER T 2 HIRE BRI EN IR B E - in respect of such losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

ZEREAHIEEE A AERPRE - These unused tax losses have no expiry date.
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e MM RMEE(]) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE—FE— | FF+ = F=+—HIFEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018
25. ENFIBNIESTER 25. Creditors and Accruals
ZZ—\F —T—tF
2018 2017
FET FHET
HK$°000 HK$000
B 5 ENFR Trade creditors 283 333
H b fE 5RIE Other creditors 10,255 10,127
HPEI® Tenants deposits 13,492 12,750
EEtEEER Accrued operating expenses 3,304 3,730
27,334 26,940
REBEBIREZ QBN TIEZREWT The ageing of the trade creditors of the Group in accordance with invoice
date is as follows:
ZZ—\F —T—tF
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$000
30HA Within 30 days 283 333

BHRNHIE - EENFIARIEFES 2S5  The carrying amounts of trade creditors, other creditors and tenants

BREEIA TFI SR REN - deposits are denominated in the following currencies:
—E—)\F —E—+F
2018 2017
FEIT FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT HK$ 23,710 23,123
AREE RMB 320 87

24,030 23,210
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26. KEHEANE
AEFEYEM S WA R49,633,0008 T (ZF—+
F : 47,054,000/ 7T) - REMEZHERTEH

—EEF RIMEMK - AREBETAIHELZ
BEHEPRIEUASINT

DRBEFRLE T/ \FFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

26. Operating Leases Commitments

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$49,633,000 (2017:
HK$47,054,000). The properties held had committed leases mainly
running for the next one to seven years. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments as lessor

under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

27. FEIERERH

HE-_Z—+E+-A=+—REERNLHKE
— Bt N E) 2 BB 511,450,000/ 7T @ AEER
S B2 /A E) 139,823,000/ 7T °

—2—-\F —E—+5F

2018 2017

FET T#ET

HK$°000 HK8'000

R—F 2K Within one year 31,191 41,388
RE_FEZEFLF(BEERMF) In the second to fifth year inclusive 59,889 24,957
FERFRE After fifth year 6,666 -
97,746 66,345

27. Major Non-Cash Transaction

During the year ended 31st December, 2017, part of dividend from an
associate of HK$511,450,000 was used to offset the amounts due to

associates of HK$139,823,000.
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FEMBERERME(E)
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28. RIKEFIETE

A& E S ERIBRB RN BIRGI B R ER M
HETEI(TBRRAGE ) RREBRES RN
—TETFE ARz BI([wEeE
) ZEFYEERAREZEED
B BAXRATEZERESHEE - £8ED
BRI ZAT - RABEERAGEIREZRER
BELRE2EARERAGTEREERTREE
FIER_ZETZF+ - A - BRUARHABZE
BEF2EBEDE -

HReBEestalkE  EERASEZEHRA
BEERABBH S 25% @414 IR A30,000
BIL(ZF—+HF : 30,00087T) ©

BERAEE 2T AERSBERNKGTERHE
®  BEZHEFRERELRTE Z0%E% @ MA
EBAES%ZE10% MR - WEEEBETER
SEREEEER AR LB R IRGTE] - bR
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REMRERESRE - RBERR  TERESR
EE B 3 AR PR T B T ANEE 2 Ak K AT H R S 2R AT

KEE °

REBE-ZE—N\E+-_A=1+—HIFERN ' &
E£BE T2 RAKREF B A340,00078 7T
(ZZ—+4 : 383,000/87T) °

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

28. Retirement Benefit Plans

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme which is
registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance (“ORSO
Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme")
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in
December 2000. The assets of the schemes are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. Employees who
were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the
MPF Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme
or switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees joining
the Group on or after 1st December, 2000 are required to join the MPF
Scheme.

For members of the MPF Scheme, both employees’ and the Group's
contributions are calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly relevant
income, with the mandatory cap of HK30,000 (2017: HK$30,000).

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from the employees
at rates ranging from 0% to 5% and from the Group at rates ranging from
5% to 10% of the employee’s basic salary, depending on the length of
service with the Group. Where there are employees who leave the ORSO
Scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions payable
by the Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions. During
the years ended 31st December, 2017 and 31st December, 2018,
there were no forfeited contributions used to set off contributions. At
the end of the reporting period, no forfeited contributions, which arose
upon employees leaving the ORSO Scheme, are available to reduce the
contributions payable in future years.

During the year ended 31st December, 2018, the Group made
contributions to the retirement benefits schemes of HK$340,000 (2017:
HK$383,000).
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FEMBEHEME(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BEr —F— )| E+ - H=+—HIFEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

29. B AR 5 M &R 29. Related Parties Transactions and Balances
REZ-_ZT—\F+-_A=1HIL K&EEEHF
RBEANTZ RS NESGIT ¢

During the year ended 31st December, 2018, the Group had transactions
and balances with related parties as follows:

(a) BRABEAEH : (a) Related party transactions:
ZE-N\F —B—tF
2018 2017
FHET FET
HK$°000 HK8'000
YN Associates
— RE EBRENR — Estate management
BEBIRA fee earned by the Group 1,833 5577
BWARARNRHEBEERATENZEBR/E A major shareholder with significant influence,
e HE(BB)BRAR([HBE Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited (“"APL")
HEE |) - AR E S AR A A and its ultimate holding company
—AIAEERERMNES — Rent, estate management and air-conditioning
MEERERZERER fees charged to the Group 1,466 855
— (RN &2 B ER A L At B R — Sundry expenses charged to the Group 546 134
WAARREEAFE N ZEZMRE A major shareholder with significant influence
R EIREFRAR([REZ]) over the Company, Tian An China
Investments Company Limited (“TACI")
— RSB I EE RS E — Management fee charged to the Group 1,700 -
— MRS B R ) AR 7 B — Service fees expenses charged to the Group 100 =
— MRS E YR A A B — Sundry expenses charged to the Group 2 -

|
it Iy
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7 & B 35 80 RO R (48) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BEr —F— )| E+ - H=+—HIFEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018
29. MR 5 NaEsRE) 29. Related Parties Transactions and Balances (continued)
(b) FEEHREASHTHH (b) Key management personnel compensation

FTEEBAENFNHFMNEZE2=EM@ARIE  The remuneration of key management is determined by the remuneration
LTS8 mEE - committee having regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

AAREEENMENTFAATEBEREEAE ©  The remuneration paid and payable to the key management of the

HAEEMFMENMEE10 - Company, who are the Directors, for the year is set out in note 10.
() FREFHHEER (c) Related party balances
—Z—-)\F S
2018 2017
FET FET
HKS$000 HK$'000
ko l/NG] Associates
— HAth IR X — Other receivable 200,229 222,717
— H A FETAR K — Other payable 7.416 1,288
SEME - AREREEEIRA A APL and its ultimate holding company
— H A FETAR K — Other payable 130 130

FETHE AR R ESEIERARRZISAEE  The amounts due to APL and its ultimate holding company are unsecured,
- BRI ESRIREREER - interest free and repayable on demand.

FEU (B BE & A RIBR KT AR - EF S K% The amounts due from (to) associates are unsecured, interest free and
REETERENHR - EERAZFEELHER  have no fixed repayment term. In the opinion of the Directors, the amount
MEMRET_EAANEE  FAESBEAREE is expected to be recovered within twelve months after the end of the
E o reporting period and therefore is classified under current assets.
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31. @t T A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

30. Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group represents equity attributable to the
owners of the Company, comprising share capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure periodically. As a part of this
review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with capital. Based on recommendations of the Directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends and
repurchase of shares.

The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

31. Financial Instruments

(a) Categories of financial instruments

ZE—I\F —E—+F
2018 2017
F#T FHET
HK$000 HKg'000
SMEE Financial assets
AHHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets - 49,298
FREMEEBERE AR EEERRE Equity instrument at FVTOCI
ZBEARTA 37,664 -
BERREBERSR (BER SR Loans and receivables (including cash and
ReEHE) cash equivalents) - 777,975
BBIERATTEC SRMEE Financial assets at amortised cost 604,016 -
641,680 827,273
AR Financial liabilities

R SER AT 2 At amortised cost 31,446 24,498
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

31. Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include available-for-sale financial
assets, equity instrument at FVTOCI, trade debtors, other receivables, loan
receivables, amounts due from/to associates, non-pledged time deposits
with original maturity of over three months, cash and cash equivalents,
trade creditors, other creditors and tenants deposits. Detalils of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
(i)  Currency risk

The Group has trade debtors, other receivables, loan receivables, non-
pledged time deposits with original maturity of over three months, cash and
cash equivalents, trade creditors and tenants deposits that are denominated
in foreign currencies which are different from the functional currency of the
respective group entity and accordingly expose the Group to currency risk.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign currency exposure. However, the management monitors
the related foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and liabilities

REEaENREENT denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
BE afR
Assets Liabilities
——)\F —T—tF ZEB-\F —T—+tF
2018 2017 2018 2017
FET FET FET FET
HKS$000 HK§000 HKS$000 HK3'000
ETT usb 100,606 39,821 - =
AREE RMB 32,136 10,519 320 87
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

31. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)
(i) Currency risk (continued)
Foreign currency sensitivity

The Group's principal subsidiaries are operating in Hong Kong and their
transactions are mostly denominated and settled in HK$, USD and RMB.
As HK$ is pegged to USD, the Director thus considers the Group's foreign
currency exposure is not significant. To the extent that the Group's revenue
and expenditure are not naturally matched in the same currency and to
the extent that there are timing differences between receipt and payment,
the Group will be exposed to foreign currency exchange gains and losses
arising from transactions in currencies other than its functional currency.

The Group mainly exposes to the currency of RVB.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% increase and
decrease in HK$ against the relevant foreign currencies. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5% change in
foreign currency rates. A positive number indicates a decrease in profit for
the year where the HK$ strengthens against the relevant currency. If there is
5% increase in HK$ against the relevant foreign currencies, the decrease in
the profit for the year is shown as below:

—EZ2-N\EF —E—+F
2018 2017
FHET FET
HK$°000 HK8'000
AR RMB
ANE [ AR Decrease in profit for the year 1,591 522

EERS  GEEH T TERENENERR
B 54 R AR I R R B FE PO R

In Director’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative ofithe
inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does not reflect
the exposure during the year. ‘ '
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

31. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group's fair value interest rate risk related primarily to loans receivables.
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk as its cash and cash
equivalents which are subject to floating interest rate. The Group currently
does not have any interest rate hedging policy. However, the Group closely
monitors interest rate movements and will enter into new banking facilities
when favourable pricing opportunities arise. The management monitors the
Group's interest exposure and will consider hedging interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group's change in interest rate is mainly attributable to its bank
balances which is considered not significant to the Group.

(i)~ Other price risk

The Group's unlisted equity securities are measured at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity price risk
in relation to these financial assets.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to price risks at the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

31. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)
(i) Other price risk (continued)

Equity instrument at FVTOCl/available-for-sale financial assets

If the business enterprise value of the underlying equity securities has been
5% (2017: 5%) higher/lower while all other variables were held constant,
investment revaluation reserve at 31st December, 2018 would have
increased/decreased by HK$1,883,000 (2017: HK$2,465,000) as a result
of changes in fair value of equity instrument at FVTOCI/available-for-sale
financial assets.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group's exposure to credit risk arises from potential losses result from
default on obligations by counterparties. The maximum exposure to the
Group is represented by the carrying amount of its financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Trade debtors consists of rental and estate management fees receivable
from tenants. Credit checks are carried out before commencement of
tenancies and ongoing credit evaluation ensures any doubtful receivables
are provided for as required. In this regard, the Directors considers that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties

are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

31. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The Group had a concentration of credit risk as the loan receivables are
advanced to a few independent third parties and a related party. As at
31st December, 2018, the loan receivables will be matured ranging from
November 2019 to October 2021 (2017: June 2018). Management
had assessed the credit rating of the borrowers for the unsecured loan
receivables of HK$195,984,000 (2017: HK$28,235,000). In addition,
loans interest have been settled in accordance with agreement terms.

The Group also has a concentration of credit risk on the amounts due from
certain associates which are engaged in property investment. The Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debt at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment loss are made for
irrecoverable amounts, if any as at 31st December, 2017. Management
considers the credit risk exposure is limited.

The Group has no other significant concentrations of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

Starting from 1st January, 2018, the Group reassesses the lifetime ECL for
trade receivables and the 12m ECL for other financial assets at the end of
the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has developed credit risk grading
to categorise exposures according to the degree of risk of default. The
Group uses publicly available financial information and its own historical
repayment records, or, where appropriate, engages an external valuer to
rate its major customers and debtors. The Group's exposure and the credit
quality of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate
value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

31. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the following

categories:
PIERE SRR Htt &R E
Internal credit filiatt R’ 5B AR Other financial
rating Description Trade debtors assets
RERR R G ERERBIERERELH RS EEEE - 1218 AFEAEE
RA E R EIRIRAC 8, BEERE &8
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default Lifetime ECL — 12-month ECL
and does not have any past-due amounts not credit-impaired
FER B A BB R IRRIE 2 EFEHEEER - 128 ATEREE
(ERERYSE AN BEERE 18
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates Lifetime ECL — 12-month ECL
but usually settle after due date not credit-impaired
(ed=3 R EIRER % E A EB /N EBE R ZEESEEEE - EHEPEEEE -
LEERBR=EIE M BEERE BEERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases Lifetime ECL — Llfetlme ECL -
in credit risk since initial recognition not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
through information developed internally
or external resources
JE51E BREELZEEZEEERE 2EFEHEEEE - 2 HFEBEEEE -
EERE EERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
ivkis B RBIBIE L2 AT AR B B A I R £ K b6l ikt
REE W EERIBLEUE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the Amount is written off Amount is written off

debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery
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FEMBEHRRMEE(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE—=FE— | EE+ - H=+—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018
o A )) 31. Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) MEEEEEBEERBK(E) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
15 B m bR it (E T4 (#8) Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

TRAMGPEBAEB S EENTEHZEE  The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group's financial

BRME TR EERR assets, which are subject to ECL assessment:
IREE
12(A =21 RHAH Hewm
SPEBIEEEETRR  MEMEHTR WHGEHEGE BEHEEBR Gross
ZEB—\F B External Internal 12-month or ECL carrying
2018 Notes credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL provided amount
FEIT
HK$’000
R H A TIRZ £51 % E Financial assets at amortised costs
FENE R
Loan receivables
REEREBIE=T MizTa c i A iV 121E A &Y 50 27,587
TRHEE &R
« Long-term loan to an Notesa, ¢ N/A Low risk 12-month ECL
independent third party
RPEREBIFE=T b c TiE 1B 12{E A &9 643 98,138
TEEMEE &R
Long-term loan to an Notesb, ¢ N/A Low risk 12-month ECL
independent third party
REEREBYE= s, c e A 1Rz 121 A &Y 48 71,000
TRHEEEE
Short-term loan to an Notesa, ¢ N/A Low risk 12-month ECL
independent third party
B 5 MR 20 iE A {liWE > HEEEEE = 1,439
Trade debtors N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL
HoA & AR TR 20 TiE igE 12{E A &9 — 8,363
EEMEEEE

Other receivables N/A Low risk 12-month ECL
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REMGHRERME(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BEr —F— )| E+ - H=+—HIFEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018
31. SR T A 31. Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) MEEEEEBERBK(E) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
15 55/ B2 R it (E 5 1% (#%) Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

TRAMFNPAFAAEELFEENTBHEZEE The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group's financial

BHME T EERR assets, which are subject to ECL assessment:
IRE{E
12BA%Z2H RH AR Hen
SPEBIEHTFR  ABEHSE RUEHESR BEHEEBR Gross
—EB-N\F U f 3 External Internal 12-month or ECL carrying
2018 Notes credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL provided amount
FET
HK$000
ReMALEE 22 NiE {livE 12{& A &9 = 198,001
TEHEEEE
Cash and cash equivalents N/A Low risk 12-month ECL
JRE MBSk 5 2 R1BR X 29 e A {i9EE 1216 A #Y - 200,229
TRHEEEE
Amounts due from associates N/A Low risk 12-month ECL
HiaE Notes:
(@ HEREBLZ EMARERERA (@  The loan is guaranteed by an independent listed company.
(b) HEFB—MBLZ EMAGRMIABEAZE  (b) The loan is guaranteed by an independent listed company and an individual
TERYERA - personal guarantor.
(© AKEZREBVINSERASUFEESLRZEDR (O The Group engaged independent exteral expert to perform expected credit loss
FEEE - RN RS - assessment on the balances. The information is extracted from valuation report.
BT B Liquidity risk

EEERBMRRE  EXRBFLEETEAKREE  In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
ERkEFREMASEEH  BETEERRBREN  alevel of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management
BKF - RAREZ2EREESLEEASF  to finance the operation of the Group, and mitigate the effects of
B8 o fluctuations in cash flows.

AREZz 2MBR(BREESEMNFIA - AEM  The Group's financial liabilities (including trade creditors, other créditors,
B~ WP & REMBEARIRK)BRERE  tenants deposits and amounts due to associates) are repayable on
g o demand.

Al
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31. €T A

(0 SMIAZAREEEE
EFAEENCREAENSRERKIEAALGEE
HE - TRIEABSREEND A BENME
FHER (BER G R R EERT RER2
) - LRIRAR BEHE T MR8 NEBAIE T

MWEE - BRABEFESBRERIABERF
MER(E—EE=R) °

RE-S—N\F+ZA=+—HZLRRERE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

31. Financial Instruments (continued)
(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. The following table gives information about
how the fair values of these financial assets are determined (in particular,
the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised
(Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

Fair value hierarchy as at 31st December, 2018

—Z—)\F
2018
£—1R -t ] E=R ot
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FRET FETT FETT FHETT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FREMEEBGEIE AR Equity instrument at
BEREZRANTA fair value through other
comprehensive income - - 37,664 37,664
- - 37,664 37,664
R-ZE—+FE+-A=+—H2Z2ARBELT Fair value hierarchy as at 31st December, 2017
—T—+F
2017
F— <tk 113 E=R HET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FET FET FEr FEIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3'000 HK$'000
AL EREEE Available-for-sale investments
— I ETRAE S — Unlisted equity securities — = 38,798 38,798
—(RgEf i — Club memberships - 10,500 - 10,500
- 10,500 38,798 49,298

REFERN  WEBEE—HR F_R/RE=HK2
BEsEEE

There were no transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3 in the current year.
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FEMBEHEME(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BEr —F— )| E+ - H=+—HIFEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018
. 2R T AR 31. Financial Instruments (continued)
(0 &MIAZARMBENEGE) (c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)

TREM T REEESREEN A ABMEGE  The following table gives information about how the fair values of these
BIRFHERMEEROREERH) - financial assets and liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used.)

+-RA=+—HBZAREE
Fair value as at

31st December, LREEEHN #HERREESH
SMEE —Z—)\F —E—tF Fair value Valuation techniques
Financial assets 2018 2017 hierarchy and key inputs
F#ET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
DR REM 2 E WS 37,664 N/A B=H BEATEZHRE:
BARBEREZIRATLA Level 3 () MEH=E
Z3E EIRARE S (i) 1EERUEE
Unlisted equity securities classified @iy MHEMEE ¢ K
as equity instrument at FVTOCI (v) BRZIEHIATISHRS 2 T

Asset-based approach.
The key inputs are:
(i) Term yield;
(it) Reversionary yield;
(iiiy Market unit rent; and
(iv) Discount for lack of control and
lack of marketability

DERAMEHERE 2 FEH 38,798 B BEELIFEZER:

IE EMRAES N/A Level 3 () AR
Unlisted equity securities classified (i) 1EERUERE

as available-for-use investments (i) MHBEMES &

(v) BRZIEHIFTISE T2 FrnE
Asset-based approach.

The key inputs are:

(i) Term yield;

(if) Reversionary yield;

(iii)y Market unit rent; and

(iv) Discount for lack of control and

lack of marketability

(EEEE FEH 10,500 FH BE_FMSERMEE
Club memberships N/A Level 2 Determined by reference to second

hand market value
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FoREHRTEL L REHBILIE

FLITRFESEHRSMEZBRAMERE
BAORREREZRFEIR(ZS2—LF :
SREBHEHERAREZF LHREES)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

31. Financial Instruments (continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial
assets

Unlisted equity securities classified as
equity instrument at FVTOCI (2017: Unlisted equity securities
classified as available-for-sale investment)

T

HK3'000

RZZE—tF—HA—H As at 1st January, 2017 37,295
AERARBEKSE Unrealised fair value gain 1,503
R-E—+tF+=-_A=+—H As at 31st December, 2017 38,798
RERAAEEEBR Unrealised fair value loss (1,134)
RZZE—N\F+=-A=+—H As at 31st December, 2018 37,664

ARERAABEEBRSEBEMAZHKEEAN
BEREZRATANDAEBEES(ZF
FAHEESREEZ A BEER) AL
BRMEMEEKEERA -

EERRRBERAIAGEVBRRTOTE
BEREBEBENREEEEAABEABES -

The unrealised fair value loss is represented by the change in fair value of
equity instrument at FVTOCI (2017: change in fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets) in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of other financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.
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32. HEVEEBSIEMERER
TRHEAAEEAABETHNAELS - 0F
ReRHFRLEY - REAZHELNABERS

MEBXARESRESEEREGSREREBRTD
DRARELRDRSRENEE -

DRBEFRLE T/ \FFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

32. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities
arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or
future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of

cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

EBEATR
EMERR R® o5
Dividend Amounts due
payable to associates Total
FETT FET FET
HK§000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=ZZ—tF—H—H At 1st January, 2017 — 139,823 139,823
FHRERH Non-cash transactions
- —RBEAREMzIE - Dividend declared by an associate - (138,535) (138,535)
- REEM — Dividend declared 621,212 - 621,212
HERLRS Financing cash flows (621,212) - (621,212)
R-ZZT—+F+=-A=+—H At31st December, 2017 - 1,288 1,288
REEM Dividend declared 310,263 - 310,263
BMERERE Financing cash flows (310,263) 6,128 (304,135)

W2 \F+-A=t+—H

At 31st December, 2018

= 7,416 7,416

||
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

33. Statement of Financial Position and Reserves of the

Company
(a) 2LFMBHRKAE (a) Company’s statement of Financial Position
—E—)\F —T—+F
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$000 HK8'000
HE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
M - MR AR Property, plant and equipment 191 114
RBARZIEE Investments in subsidiaries 1,914 1,914
(N EPNCIVSEN Amounts due from subsidiaries 696,669 559,182
AHHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets - 10,500
(el g Club memberships 10,500 -
709,274 571,710
RENRE Current assets
FEMRRIA - TANERR - 1BE K Debtors, prepayments, deposits and
H b pE UG IE other receivables 1,323 2,368
RIERE PR H Income tax recoverable 618 -
AR ER=EA S E 2 Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity
EHITER of over three months - 73,323
HekReEE Cash and cash equivalents 178,889 426,316
180,830 502,007
HEE Total assets 890,104 1,073,717
#a EQUITY
&N Share capital 681,899 681,899
B Reserves 162,610 349,966
844,509 1,031,865
" LIABILITIES
mEAR Current liabilities
FERTFRIE R FERT B Creditors and accruals 3,712 4,094
FER PSR Income tax payable - 886
FERTHT B A BIBR IR Amounts due to subsidiaries 41,883 36,872
HERE Total liabilities 45,595 41,852
HESRAR Total equity and liabilities 890,104 1,073,717

RABRARER - E—NF=A+=HKE
ERRBRERER YA TIESFARES

ERE
Patrick Lee Seng Wei

Director

EF

are signed on its behalf by:

SR

Edwin Lo King Yau

E=a
Director

The statement of financial position of the Company was approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 13th March, 2019 and
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SESMERRMEE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BEr —F— )| E+ - H=+—HIFEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018
33, NAIBBEAROR R Mi#EE ) 33, Statement of Financial Position and Reserves of the

Company (continued)

(b) LFEZBER (b) Movement in the Company’s reserves
BEEA R REEF o
Investment
revaluation Retained
reserve profits Total
FET FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000
RZZE—tF—H—H At 1st January, 2017 4,255 382,886 387,141
FALEHE K Total comprehensive 649 586,119 586,768
income for the year
XNBER—ZT—RFRE Dividends relating to 2016 - (310,606) (310,606)
(K1a£13) (Note 13)
BB -T—+FRE  Dividend relating to 2017 = (310,606) (310,606)
(K1a£13) (Note 13)
[& 17 Bl f& (477723) Repurchases of shares (Note 23) - (2,731) (2,731)
R_ZT—tF+=-HA=+—8 At31st December, 2017 4,904 345,062 349,966
FRBEZE W Total comprehensive - 122,907 122,907
income for the year
INBE—Z—LFRE Dividend relating to 2017 - (310,263) (310,263)
(Kia£13) (Note 13)

RZFE—N\F+ZA=+—H At31st December, 2018 4,904 157,706 162,610

111
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FEMBEHEME(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BEr —F— )| E+ - H=+—HIFEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

34, TEMBARIREBE ARFIE 34. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries and Associates

BBEHPN  KRABR—ZT—NER-ZT—+  Details of the Company's subsidiaries at 31st December, 2018 and 2017,
F+-A=+-—HEEBLENTEN B AR  which operate in Hong Kong except otherwise indicated, are as follows:

BT
(@) EEMELH (a) Principal subsidiaries
Fi{sREE DL
Percentage of
attributable equity
::E NG
&1 3 Ao BRITRE MERFHE EERE FRERE IERE
Place of Particular of directly
Incorporation/ issued share capital/ held by the held by the
Name establishment paid up registered capital Company Group Principal activities
ERUBERAR &R 1,000/ %%, /10,000/ 7T 100 100 HBEE
AsiaSec Finance Limited Hong Kong 1,000 Ordinary shares/ Financing
HK$10,000
TENFERERAF] B 300,000 E5BR,/ = 100 #xER
AsiaSec Property Management Limited ~ Hong Kong 300,000 7 Property management
300,000 Ordinary shares/
HK$300,000
REREARAE i AREER 2T = 100 M%K%
Citigrand Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary shares/ HK$2 Property investment
AA(RE)ERAR i AREE 2T 100 100 RE&ERR
Dan Form (China) Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary shares/HK$2 Investment holding
R(ER)ERAR i 1,000,000 & @,/ 100 100 RE&ERR
Dan Form (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000/ 7T Investment holding
1,000,000 Ordinary shares/

HK$1,000,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

B E—F— | F+ = F=+—HIFEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018
34, TEWRB AR MEZRAFFE 34 Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries and Associates
(%) (continued)
(a) EEMBAF(E) (a) Principal subsidiaries (continued)
Fi{sREESLL
Percentage of
attributable equity
HELT

30 3 A BRITRE MERFES HERE  SsRERE IERE

Place of Particular of directly

Incorporation/ issued share capital/ held by the  held by the
Name establishment paid up registered capital  Company Group  Principal activities
Dawna Range Company Limited BE 2RERR 205 T = 100 REZR

Hong Kong 2 Ordinary shares/HK$20 Investment holding
BEMEERARAT BE 1,000/ % @0%,10,000/8 T - 100 #xER
Diamond Property Management Hong Kong 1,000 Ordinary shares/ Property management

Company Limited HK$10,000
BRABRAT] B 10,0008 %M /10,0008 7T = 100 MERE
Harcape Limited Hong Kong 10,000 Ordinary shares/ Property investment
HK$10,000
BEEABRARA B 1,010,000 &3 = 100 REER
Keen Safe Investment Limited Hong Kong 1,010,000/ 7T Investment holding
1,010,000 Ordinary shares/
HK$1,010,000
REREARAA RBERES 1RERR1ET = 100 #MERE
Oriental Dragon Investment Limited British Virgin Islands 1 Ordinary share/USD1 Property investment
BERAEXER)ERA B 60,000,0008 &BHR = 100 REER
Smart Golf (Intemanonal) Hong Kong 60,000,000/ 1T Investment holding
Company Limited 60,000,000 Ordinary share/

HK$60,000,000
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34, TEMHBA R RE LA RAFE

(%)

(a) FEMBLT(E)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

34. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries and Associates

(continued)

(a) Principal subsidiaries (continued)

Fi{sREESLL
Percentage of
attributable equity
HELT
30 3 0 AT BRITRE MERFES EERE FRERE IERE
Place of Particular of directly
Incorporation/ issued share capital/ held by the  held by the

Name establishment paid up registered capital  Company Group Principal activities
AERRARAF B ARE R 2T = 100 #%RE

Top Power Development Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary shares/HK$2 Property investment
REFHERRAF RBHTAS 1RERERET = 100 #%RE

Winshine Properties Limited British Virgin Islands 1 Ordinary share/USD1 Property investment
UARREBRAR B 1RERR VBT = 100 #%RE

Asia Empire Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 Ordinary share/HK$1 Property investment
RRAARAA B 1RERER VBT = 100 #%ERE

Cold Asia Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 Ordinary share/HK$1 Property investment
ERRARRAR B 1RERER VBT = 100 #%RE

Asiawell Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 Ordinary share/HK$1 Property investment
BHHRERRAR B 1RERR VBT = 100 #%RE

Wide Asia Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 Ordinary share/HK$1 Property investment
GRMERSERERAA B 2REBER 208 = 100 #%RE

AsiaSec Project Management Limited ~ Hong Kong 2 Ordinary shares/HK$20 Property investment
BNENERAR RBHTHS 1RERRET = 100 #%RE

Man Lee Offshore Limited British Virgin Islands 1 Ordinary share/USD1 Property investment
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34 TBHEBATRBL DTS

(%)

(b) FEBELT

DRBEFRLE T/ \FFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2018

34. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries and Associates
(continued)

(b) Principal associates

Fr{GERER St
Percentage of
attributable equity
HBAELF
218 =30 o A ) BEESH FRERFE FEXRH
directly
Place of held by the held by the
Name incorporation Company Group Principal activities
I RBEEFIERERR QR H B R fE - 294 WEERE

Beijing Jing Yuan Property
Development Company
Limited

TEERERR AR
Ho Pok Investment Company
Limited

EEEXARAT
Kin Tong Land Investment

Company Limited

Zeta Estates Limited

Mainland China

B
Hong Kong

s
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

Property development

- 50 REER
Investment holding

- 50 WERE

Property investment

- 3333 MEBREMERE
Property development and
Property investment
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SEEMEFIEHRE SUMMARY OF THE GROUP’S
FINANCIAL INFORMATION

“B-N\§E —Tt+F —“FT-RF —E-hF —THF
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
FET TET T&7T TE7T TE7T
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000

W as Revenue 58,454 60,004 55,493 50,759 49,745
iyl Operating profit 62,259 83,552 107,931 76,507 45,335
FE(EEE A A Share of profit (loss) of

s A (5 1E) associates 56,302 99,051 (30,995) 132,062 209,300
R 75 AT A Profit before taxation 118,561 182,603 76,936 208,569 254,635
FRfS Bzt i Income tax expenses (5.814) (13,438) (15,174) (12,851) (7,432)
REFRF Profit for the year 112,747 169,165 61,762 195,718 247,203
BB Attributable to:

AR = Equity holders 112,747 169,165 61,762 195,718 247,203

Al BN JEN JEN BN

HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents

BREF Earnings per share 9.08 13.62 497 15.69 19.82
BEE Total assets 4,714,880 4,894,582 5,405,183 5,398,618 5,204,157
BmaE Total liabilities (205,730) (191,185) (314,853) (178960) (161,141)

BEFE Net assets 4,509,150 4,703,397 5,090,330 5,219,658 5,043,016
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